
The Mission of the Las Gallinas Valley Sanitary District is to protect public health and our environment, providing effective wastewater 
collection, treatment, and resource recovery. 

101 Lucas Valley Road, Suite 300  •  San Rafael, CA  94903  •  415.472.1734  •  Fax 415.499.7715  •  
www.lgvsd.org 

      BOARD MEETING AGENDA 

May 16, 2024 

MATERIALS RELATED TO ITEMS ON THIS AGENDA ARE AVAILABLE FOR 

PUBLIC INSPECTION DURING NORMAL BUSINESS HOURS AT THE DISTRICT 

OFFICE, 101 LUCAS VALLEY ROAD, SUITE 300, SAN RAFAEL, OR ON THE DISTRICT 

WEBSITE  WWW.LGVSD.ORG 

OPEN SESSION: 

1. PUBLIC COMMENT

This portion of the meeting is reserved for persons desiring to address the Board on matters not on the

agenda and within the jurisdiction of the Las Gallinas Valley Sanitary District. Presentations are generally

limited to three minutes. All matters requiring a response will be referred to staff for reply in writing and/or

placed on a future meeting agenda. Please contact the General Manager before the meeting.

CLOSED SESSION: 

2. CLOSED SESSION PURSUANT TO GOVERNMENT CODE SECTION 54956.8
CONFERENCE WITH REAL PROPERTY NEGOTIATOR  –   Two items: 1) First Property: McPhail Site
(APNs 180-151-18, 180-161-10, and 180-161-09) McPhail: Approximately 9.76 acres of land (APNs
180-151-18, 180-161-10, & 180-161-09), located at 1565 Vendola Drive, San Rafael, in the County of
Marin (unincorporated), that served as the location of the former McPhail Elementary School, which
consists of vacant land and secured structures ("McPhail Site").  Agency negotiator: Curtis Paxton,
General Manager. Negotiating parties: San Rafael City Elementary School District. Under negotiation:
Instruction to negotiator will concern both price and terms of payment.

2) Second Property: Old Gallinas Site  (APN 180-123-01) : Approximately 7.9 acres of developed land
(APN 180-123-01), located at 251 N. San Pedro Road, San Rafael, in the County of Marin 
(unincorporated), consisting of classroom buildings and athletic field ("Old Gallinas Site"). Agency 
negotiator: Curtis Paxton, General Manager. Negotiating parties: San Rafael City Elementary School 
District. Under negotiation: Instruction to negotiator will concern both price and terms of payment. 

3. CONSENT CALENDAR

These items are considered routine and will be enacted, approved or adopted by one motion unless a

request for removal for discussion or explanation is received from the staff or the Board.

4:00 pm 

Estimated 
Time 

4:05 pm 

4:35 pm 

1

http://www.lgvsd.org/


May 16, 2024 Page 2 of 3 
  

  

  
 

101 Lucas Valley Road, Suite 300  •  San Rafael, CA  94903  •  415.472.1734  •  Fax 415.499.7715  •  
www.lgvsd.org 
 

A. Approve the Board Minutes for May 2 and May 6, 2024 

B. Received and Ratify the Check Warrant List  

C. Approve Board Compensation for April 2023 

D. Approve Budget Authorization for Actions to Potentially Eliminate Blending 

E. Approve Award of Design Contract for John Duckett Pump Statin Electrical Upgrades and Terra 
Linda Trunck Sewer Creek Crossing Improvements 

F. Approve Award of Contract for Treatment Plant Standby Generator Upgrade 

G. Approve Audit Engagement Letter 

H. Approve Resolution 2024-2328 Time and Place for Public Hearing on the Budget for the Fiscal Year 
2024-2025 

 

Possible expenditure of funds:  Yes, Item B through G. 

Staff recommendation:  Adopt Consent Calendar – Items A through H. 

 

4. INFORMATION ITEMS: 

STAFF/CONSULTANT REPORTS: 

1. General Manager’s Report – verbal 

2. Engineering Department Report – written 

3. Solar Project Update – verbal 

4. Administrative Services Department Report – written 

5. Quarterly Treasurer’s & Financial Reports as of March 31, 2024 – written 

6. Review Preliminary Budget for Fiscal Year 2024-2025 – written 

 

5. BOARD MEMBER REPORTS:  

1. CLARK  
a. NBWA Board Committee, Operations Control Centers Ad Hoc Committee,  

Fleet Management Ad Hoc Committee,  FutureSense Ad Hoc Committee, 
CASA Workforce Committee, Other Reports  

 
 

2. MURRAY 
a. Marin LAFCo, Flood Zone 6, Biosolids Ad Hoc Committee, CASA Energy Committee,  

 Development Ad Hoc Committee,  San Francisco Bay Trail Ad Hoc Committee,  
 Other Reports 

 
 

 
3. NITZBERG 

 
 
 

4. ROBARDS 
a. Gallinas Watershed Council/Miller Creek, Engineering Ad Hoc Committee re: STPURWE, 

McInnis Marsh Ad Hoc Committee,  Development Ad Hoc Committee, 
FutureSense Ad Hoc Committee, Other Reports 
 
 

4:45 PM 

 

5:45 PM 

 

2



May 16, 2024 Page 3 of 3 

101 Lucas Valley Road, Suite 300  •  San Rafael, CA  94903  •  415.472.1734  •  Fax 415.499.7715  •  
www.lgvsd.org 

5. YEZMAN
a. Flood Zone 7, CSRMA,  Ad Hoc Engineering Committee  re: STPURWE,

Marin Special Districts,  Biosolids Ad Hoc Committee,
Other Reports

6. BOARD REQUESTS:
A. Board Meeting Attendance Requests – Verbal

B. Board Agenda Item Requests – Verbal

7. VARIOUS INDUSTRY RELATED ARTICLES

8. ADJOURNMENT

FUTURE BOARD MEETINGS JUNE 6 AND JUNE 20, 2024 

CERTIFICATION:  I, Teresa Lerch, Board Secretary of the Las Gallinas Valley Sanitary District, hereby 
declare under penalty of perjury that on or before May 13, 4:00 p.m., I posted the Agenda for the Board 
Meeting of said Board to be held on May 16, 2024 at the District Office, located at 101 Lucas Valley Road, 
Suite 300, San Rafael, CA. 

DATED: May 9, 2024 

_______________________ 
Teresa L. Lerch 
Board Secretary 

 _________________________________________________________________  

The Board of the Las Gallinas Valley Sanitary District meets regularly on the first and third Thursday of  
each month. The District may also schedule additional special meetings for the purpose of completing unfinished 
business and/or study session. Regular meetings are held at the District Office, 101 Lucas Valley Road, Suite 300, San 
Rafael, CA.  

In compliance with the Americans with Disabilities Act, if you need special assistance to participate in this meeting, 
please contact the District at (415) 472-1734 at least 24 hours prior to the meeting. Notification  
prior to the meeting will enable the District to make reasonable accommodation to help ensure accessibility  
to this meeting.

5:55  PM 

AGENDA APPROVED: Craig K. Murray, President David Byers,  Legal Counsel 

6:10  PM 

6:00 PM 

3



 

 
 

 

5/16/2024 
 

PUBLIC COMMENT 
 

This portion of the meeting is reserved for persons desiring to address the Board on 

matters not on the agenda and within the jurisdiction of the Las Gallinas Valley 

Sanitary District. Presentations are generally limited to three minutes. All matters 

requiring a response will be referred to staff for reply in writing and/or placed on a 

future meeting agenda. Please contact the General Manager before the meeting. 
 

AGENDA ITEM 1 

4



 

 
 

 

5/16/2024 
 

CLOSED SESSION 

 Separate Item to be distributed at Board Meeting 

□ Separate Item to be distributed prior to Board Meeting 

□ Verbal Report  

□ Presentation 

 

AGENDA ITEM 2 

5



6



7



8



9



10



11



12



13



14



15



16



17



18



19



20



21



22



23



24



25



Page 1 of 3 

  Agenda Summary Report  

To: Board of Directors 
From: Michael P. Cortez, PE, District Engineer 

(415) 526-1518; mcortez@lgvsd.org  
Mtg. Date: May 16, 2024 

Re: Budget Authorization for Actions to Potentially Eliminate Blending 

Item Type: Consent    X   Action        Information  Other  . 

Standard Contract:    Yes        No (See attached) Not Applicable    X     . 

STAFF RECOMMENDATION 
Board to approve the following: 

1. A budget authorization in the amount of $1,375,000 to expand the wet weather capacity of
the Primary Effluent Pump Station and Secondary Clarifiers to 24 MGD with the goal of
potentially eliminating or reducing bypass events at the treatment plant.

2. A sole-source equipment supply contract with G3 Engineering for the retrofit of existing
pumps or procurement of new larger pumps manufactured by Cascade Pumps for the
Primary Effluent Pump Station in the amount of $290,000, which is included in the
requested budget authorization.

3. A sole-source equipment supply contract with One Water Technologies for the
procurement of “Flo-Clip Baffle System” flocculation baffles for the two Secondary Clarifiers
in the amount of $388,000, which is included in the requested budget authorization.

BACKGROUND 
The District’s existing 2022 NPDES Permit (CA0037851, Order No. R2-2020-0022) includes a 
requirement to consider alternatives to discontinue bypass events (blending) by December 1, 
2024. Furthermore, the specific tasks to reduce blending outlined in Table 6 of the 2022 NPDES 
Permit require the preparation of a Utility Analysis and implementation of all feasible actions 
should the District seek to continue blending while utilizing the new combined fixed film/activated 
sludge nitrification and denitrification process (Bio-Wheels system) installed with the Secondary 
Treatment Plant Upgrade & Recycled Water Expansion (STPURWE) project. Blending refers to 
periods when only partial biological treatment is performed due to limited secondary treatment 
capacity at high flows. 

Following substantial completion of the STPURWE project in late 2022, the District’s treatment 
capacity was increased to 18 MGD. In the two years following the commissioning of the project, 
the number and size of blending events have decreased but continue to occur during major storm 
events. Historically, the District had identified potential alternatives to eliminate blending such as 
flow equalization and the addition of a third secondary clarifier. However, because of existing site 
constraints and high cost of these alternatives estimated at $20M, the District implemented a 
more cost-effective “systems approach” to eliminate blending by improving upon the benefits 

Item Number_____3D_____________ 

GM Review   _____CP_____________ 

26

mailto:mcortez@lgvsd.org


 

 

 

 Page 2 of 3 

achieved with the STPURWE project combined with a broader collection system sewer 
rehabilitation and inflow and infiltration (I&I) reduction program. Such an approach is consistent 
with the 2022 NPDES Permit. 
 
Pursuant to the Unit Analysis requirement imposed by the Regional Water Board, starting in late 
2023, District staff initiated a partial evaluation of primary and secondary treatment facilities with 
Pacific Wastewater Optimization (PWO) based on Aqua Engineering and District staff’s 
observation of the results of the STPURWE project. The analyses show that there is a potential 
alternative to flow equalization/third secondary clarifier by increasing the pumping capacity of the 
Primary Effluent Pump Station and enhancing the performance of the two Secondary Clarifiers to 
provide full biological treatment capacity up to the highest recorded peak wet weather flow of 24 
MGD at the plant. This finding is significant in that other than potentially eliminating flow 
equalization, any improvement in hydraulic or biological treatment performance will help reduce 
the size and cost of necessary facilities should the peak wet weather flow exceed 24 MGD due to 
unforeseen increase in the frequency of major storm events. As such, staff recommends moving 
forward with the project. The estimated cost of improvements is $1.375 million with the following 
breakdown: 
 

A. Primary Effluent Pump Station Optimization 
1. New/retrofit Cascade pumps to achieve 24 MGD:  $   262,000 
2. Installation and delivery:      $     78,000 
3. Electrical and miscellaneous piping work:   $   300,000 

 
B. Secondary Clarifiers Optimization 

1. Flo-Clip Baffle System by One Water Technologies:  $   388,000 
2. Installation and delivery:      $   108,000 
3. Engineering services:      $     80,000 

       Subtotal:   $1,216,000 
       Sales tax on equipment: $     60,125 
       Project management: $     38,075 
       Contingency (5%)  $     60,800 
       Total    $1,375,000   
 
District staff sought a second opinion from Hazen and Sawyer regarding the recommendations to 
achieve 24 MGD. Hazen and Sawyer reviewed the analysis and made extensive comments on 
WPO’s technical memorandum and supporting hydraulic analysis. District staff deemed WPO 
satisfactorily responded to each comment, and that the recommendations to achieve 24 MGD are 
reasonable.   
 
PREVIOUS BOARD ACTION 
N/A 
 

ENVIRONMENTAL REVIEW 
N/A 
 
FISCAL IMPACT 
$500,000 for FY 2023-24 and $875,000 for FY 2024-25 for a total of $1,375,000. Funding 
sources for the project will come from unspent carryover funds from the STPURWE project in 

27



 

 

 

 Page 3 of 3 

FY 2023-24 and from unrestricted general funds to be approved in the FY 2024-25 capital outlay 
budget.  The District’s estimate is slightly above what PWO estimated due to an increase 
electrical work anticipated for the Primary Effluent Pump Station Optimization and contingency 
increase to 5%. As stated in the in the hydraulic analysis and recommendation by PWO, the 
estimate is considered conservative and the numbers are expected to be adjusted downward 
when the electrical and pump repair costs are detailed.   

28



1 

DATE: March 25, 2024  

RE: ANALYSIS OF EXISTING HYDRAULIC CAPACITY AND UTILITY ANALYSIS OF OPTIONS TO 
ELIMINATE BLENDING – LGVSD TREATMENT PLANT 

TO: Mike Cortez, PE, District Engineer 

FROM: Jason Warner, PE, Project Manager (CE No. 63190) 

The District’s existing NPDES Permit (issued in September 1, 2020) includes six requirement to minimize 
the number and size of bypass events (See Table 6).  Three apply to the treatment plant, including 
continued implementation of a Wet Weather Improvement Plan, Increasing the Biological Capacity to 18 
mgd, and a requirement to prepare a Utility Analysis by December 1, 2024.  The Utility Analysis requires 
identification of all feasible actions available to eliminate bypasses.  

On November 1, 2015, the Las Gallinas Valley Sanitary District submitted its Wet Weather Improvement 
Plan.  The plan identifies key performance metrics and projects to minimize peak flows.  

In 2022, the Las Gallinas Valley Sanitary District upgraded its treatment plant to provide 18 mgd of 
capacity– including conversion to a biological nitrogen removal process.  The upgrade puts the District in a 
leadership position related to nutrient treatment in the SF Bay Area. One limitation of the upgrade is that 
the District continues to bypass a portion of peak flows during peak wet weather events above 18 mgd. 

The analysis included in this memorandum satisfies the major requirement of the Utility Analysis – namely 
to identify alternatives to eliminate bypasses. The focus of this memo is to examine and resolve barriers to 
treatment for peak flows up to 24 mgd.  24 mgd is expected to eliminate bypasses at Las Gallinas as no 
influent flows above this value are recorded.   

A secondary limitation of the upgraded plant is the inability to directly control RAS flows.  The existing 
configuration allows Operations Staff to set a weir gate elevation, but the flow over the weir varies and 
does not allow direct control of a major process variable.  A review of possible solutions will be included in 
a follow-up memorandum. The existing system is serviceable, but not ideal. 

Based upon input from staff, the following potential bottlenecks were analyzed to allow 24 mgd peak 
capacity: 

1. Gravity pipe segments from the primary clarifiers to the primary effluent pump station.
2. Primary Effluent Pump Station
3. Secondary Clarifiers
4. Gravity pipe segments from Secondary Clarifiers to Outfall

29



 

2 
 

The analysis shows that the Primary Effluent Pump Station (Item 2) and Secondary Clarifiers (Item 3) are the  
bottlenecks to achieve 24 mgd of capacity.  The following memo details and recommends solutions to 
upgrade the capacity of the primary effluent pump station and secondary clarifiers to 24 mgd.  The cost to 
upgrade to 24 mgd is estimated at $1.32M. 

1.0   Analysis of Gravity Pipe Segments 

To analyze the gravity pumping systems, Pacific Wastewater Optimization engaged Dan Goodwin 
(Innovative Hydraulics), an expert treatment plant hydraulic engineer.  The full analysis and technical report 
are included in Appendix A. 

The two primary questions considered in the analysis were:  

Is the existing piping from the primary clarifiers to the primary effluent pump station adequate to 
convey 24 mgd?  
 
And 
 
Is the existing piping from the secondary clarifiers to the outfall adequate to convey 24 mgd of 
capacity?  

The analysis shows that the capacity in the primary effluent pipeline is dependent on the downstream 
wetwell level.  When the level is operated at 10.0’ (site elevation 12.5’) and 24 mgd is routed through the 
primaries, then the V-notch weirs in all three primaries are not surcharged.  When operated at 10.0’ or 
below – the capacity of the piping from the primaries to the effluent pump station meets or exceeds 24 
mgd.  From operational records (see Appendix C), it appears that the pump station does not possess 
capacity to maintain the 10.0’ level and rises to 11.0’ and potentially beyond (the instrument does not read 
above 11.0’). The Primary Effluent Pump Station is the single greatest limitation to plant capacity. 

The report also includes an analysis of the piping segments from the secondary clarifiers to the outfall.  This 
segment is currently under construction and will be modified within the next six months.  Per the request 
from staff, the secondary effluent pipeline capacity was evaluated - with and without the improvements.  
The findings are shown in Table 5 (Table number from report in Appendix A) below.    

Table from Hydraulic Analysis Report (Appendix A) 

 

Without improvements, surcharging begins at 20 mgd with nearly 2 feet of secondary clarifier surcharging 
at 24 mgd.  The analysis shows that the modifications under construction alleviate all surcharging and allow 

30



 

3 
 

free flow of 24 mgd (see second column).  The modifications underway appear to relieve a significant 
barrier to achieving 24 mgd of capacity. 

From the analysis, both of the gravity segments from the primaries to the primary effluent pump station 
and downstream segments from the secondary clarifiers will allow 24 mgd when the ongoing construction 
is completed (early Summer 2024). 

2.0 Analysis of Primary Effluent Pump Station  

The existing pump station is designed for 18 mgd.  From recent performance data, it is possible that the 
peak capacity is as low as 14 mgd (see Appendix C – SCADA Data from 2/4/24).  When flows exceeds 12 
mgd, the wetwell extends above 13.5 feet and Operations staff members are forced to bypass secondary 
treatment.  If the primary effluent pump station is operating above 13.5, the hydraulic capacity of the 
gravity lines between the primaries and the primary effluent pump station is below 24 mgd. 

During wet weather, the District operates the primary effluent pump station in contact stabilization mode.  
The mode separates RAS flows from the primary effluent pump station – so the station is dedicated solely 
to primary effluent during a storm.  Under existing conditions, the smaller primary effluent pumps do not 
add capacity when two (or three) of the larger pumps are operating.  The smaller pumps cannot overcome 
the head produced by the larger pumps.   

Cascade Pump (the manufacturer of the existing pumps) was consulted about replacement options to 
achieve 24 mgd.  Cascade proposed retrofitting the three large pumps with higher flow units.  Their best 
option was to provide 20 mgd across two pumps (all three large pumps will be upgraded) and upgrading 
one of the smaller pumps to a higher head unit with 4 mgd capacity. The configuration allows for 24 mgd of 
total capacity with one of the larger units out of service. The cost for the pumps is $330,000 (including tax), 
pump shop services of $140,000, and delivery charges of $8,000 (Total $498k).  The Cascade alternative 
avoids expansion of the existing wetwell which would likely exceed the retrofit proposal by a factor of 
three. 

Figure 1: Existing Primary Effluent Pump Line Up 

31



 

4 
 

 

 

 

The recommended scope is built around meeting an October 31, 2024 delivery schedule. It includes 
upgrading the bowl assembly to 7,015 gpm at 25 feet TDH on three pumps and 2,778 gpm at 25 feet on one 
of the smaller pumps.  The pump upgrade scope also includes replacement of the lower column section to 
accommodate the new bowl assembly.  The existing 40 hp motor will also be replaced with a 75 hp motor 
assembly (both at 1200 rpm).  The new bowl assembly and lower column section will be epoxy coated. The 
cost estimate includes a $150,000 allowance for electrical upgrades.  This number will be refined after a site 
visit by Mr. Todd Beecher – Beecher Engineering planned for April 10/11th. 

3.0 Secondary Clarifier Optimization –CFD Modeling Results (Summary of Prior Tech Memo) 

As a part of the initial vision to achieve 24 mgd of capacity, Mike Cortez directed a study to improve the 
treatment capacity of the secondary clarifiers.  Capacity is dependent on the mixed liquor solids 
concentration and settling characteristics (SVI).  The evaluation (see Attachment B – dated November 7 th, 
2023) included computation fluid dynamics (CFD) modeling of the Las Gallinas Secondary Clarifiers using 
conservative SVI’s corresponding to the 75th and 83rd percentile (two different SVI scenarios).  With the 75th 
percentile, optimization improved effluent quality by 54% at 24 mgd, reducing effluent solids from 20.0 to 
9.4 mg/L.  A summary of the model runs and findings is shown in the following table. 

Table 1: Summary of Model Results – Secondary Clarifier Optimization Report 

LGVSD Secondary Clarifiers - Summary of Model Run Results   
Scenario Flow/Clarfier 

(MGD) 
SVI 

(mL/g) 
a 

MLSS 
(mg/L) 

Optimized Effluent 
TSS 

(mg/L) 

Improve. 
(%) 

1 9 146 2115 No 13.0  

Three large pumps to 
be upgraded to 10 
mgd (7,015 gpm) – 20 
mgd firm and one of 
the smaller pumps to 
4 mgd (2,778 gpm) 

32



 

5 
 

2 9 146 2115 Yes 7.7 41% 
3 8 146 2115 No 11.0  
4 12 146 2115 No 20.0  
5 12 146 2115 Yes 9.2 54% 
6 12 165 2115 No 43.0  
7 12 165 2115 Yes 31.0 28% 

a SVI of 146 corresponds to 75th percentile    
a SVI of 165 corresponds to the 83rd percentile    

 

The modeling shows that secondary clarifier optimization can provide significant additional capacity and 
allow operation to 24 mgd.  The cost of optimization is approximately $612,000 including design, 
fabrication, delivery, and installation in two clarifiers.   

Figure 2: Conceptual rendering of Flo-Clip Baffles 

 

4.0   Estimated Costs 

The costs to improve the Primary Effluent Pump Station and Secondary Clarifiers is estimated at $1.32M as 
detailed in Table 2 below.  The estimate is considered conservative and the numbers are expected to be 
adjusted downward when the electrical and pump repair costs are detailed.  An estimate for the pump 
upgrade (removal, installation of new parts, and re-installation) is expected the week of 3/25/24.  The 
electrical costs will be updated following a field investigation on April 10/11th. 

33



 

6 
 

 

5.0   Outstanding Issues 

Evaluating potential alternatives to the existing weir gate RAS flow control method are included in the 
scope and will be included in a follow up memo.   The challenge of improving RAS Pumping is independent 
of the improvements required to achieve 24 mgd of primary effluent pumping and secondary clarifier 
capacity.  The two questions can be considered independently. 

During discussions with plant staff, the challenge of disinfecting peak flows emerged.  A question was raised 
about the ability to disinfect during peak flows due to limited contact time.  A mitigating factor is the 
District’s permit that is based upon a six-week rolling geometric mean.  The six-week averaging period 
allows for one or two high values while maintaining compliance.  Additionally, if a high value is recorded, 
dosage levels can be raised in the following weeks to ensure compliance.  In short, the existing permit 
provides grace for significant peak events.   

One way to supplement disinfection during peak events is to supplement with peracetic acid.  Peracetic 
acid acts nearly instantaneously, which is helpful when contact time is reduced.  Peracetic acid may also 
allow the construction of a smaller UV disinfection system in the future, assuming supplementation at peak 
flows.  Peracetic acid requires no ‘dechlor’ step, can be stored for a year or more without degradation, 
degrades to acetic acid (vinegar) when applied, and is safe for release to waterways.  The downside is it is 
expensive on a per gallon basis and must be handled with care. 

6.0 Recommendations 

To achieve 24 mgd capacity and eliminate blending in all but the most extreme events, the following 
actions are recommended to meet a November 1, 2024 implementation date. 

34



 

7 
 

1. As soon as practical - Seek budget funding in the amount of $1.32M to upgrade the influent pump 
station and increase the treatment capacity of the secondary clarifiers to 24 mgd for Winter 
2024/25.   

2.  Within 21 days, authorize Cascade Pump to prepare a submittal and procure parts for the upgrade 
of the primary effluent pump station ($290,000 + tax and delivery).  The purchase should be made 
on a sole source basis, as other vendors would require a complete pump replacement at higher 
cost.  

3. Within 60 days, authorize Pacific Wastewater Optimization to prepare a design and submittals for 
the optimization of the two secondary clarifiers ($80,000 design + $388,000 for fabrication and 
delivery) Perform secondary clarifier optimization to re-rate the secondary clarifiers to 24 mgd.  As 
an option, Pacific Wastewater Optimization can seek bids and coordinate the installation of the 
baffle systems. 

4. Within 90 days, enter into a contract with a pump service company to remove the pumps, install 
the retrofit parts, perform coating, and reinstall the higher capacity pump system ($160,000).  
Actual pricing expected at $100,000.  Schedule work for October 2024. 

5. Within 90 days, enter into a contract for the upgrade of wire, conduit, and motor controls as 
outlined by Mr. Todd Beecher (Electrical Engineer) based on field investigation on April 11th. 

6. Within 120 days, seek bids for the installation of the baffle systems.  Schedule the work for 
September 2024. 

7. Perform a pilot study to evaluate peracetic acid’s ability to supplement disinfection during peak wet 
weather (flow >10mgd) events.  A pilot study would require three totes, containment, and metering 
pump.  Process control samples (ie from the inlet of the contact basin) can be collected to compare 
pathogen counts with and without a specified dosage of peracetic acid. 

 

The recommended actions are expected to reduce blending to only the most extreme wet weather events.  
The actions are expected to eliminate the need for new flow equalization volume.  The peracetic acid pilot 
study is intended to provide a safety factor for regulatory compliance and minimize the cost of the future 
UV disinfection process when it is constructed.  The recommended actions leverage the existing plant 
infrastructure to provide the maximum capacity and minimize or eliminate future capital expenses 
associated with an equalization basin and/or third secondary clarifier. 

  

35



 

8 
 

 

Appendix A 

Las Gallinas – Treatment Plant Hydraulic Analysis –  

Memo Dated March 19, 2024 from Mr. Dan Goodwin, PE 

  

36



 

 
Innovative Hydraulics      106 Maplewood Drive, Wexford, PA 15090      412-334-1637 

www.innovativehydraulics.net 
 

Software Development 

Innovative Hydraulics  
 
 
 
 
 

MEMORANDUM 
 
 

To:   Jason Warner, PE – Pacific Wastewater Optimization 
 
From:   Dan Goodwin, PE – Innovative Hydraulics 
 
CC:    
 
Date: March 19, 2024 
 
RE:   Las Gallinas – Treatment Plant Hydraulic Profile Analysis 
 
 
Innovative Hydraulics (IH) was contracted by Pacific Wastewater Optimization (PWO) to use its 
Visual Hydraulics© software to analyze portions of the Las Gallinas Valley Sanitary District’s 
existing wastewater treatment plant.  The following memo presents the background, scope of work, 
analysis, and recommendations made by IH for the above referenced project. 
 
Background 
 
The Las Gallinas Valley Sanitation District (LGVSD) wastewater treatment plant is a standard 
aeration/anoxic biological treatment facility with primary clarification, aeration/anoxic basins, 
final clarification, and chlorine disinfection for treatment.  Per the documentation provided, the 
plant treats an average flow of 3.2 MGD with a peak wet weather flow of 24 MGD. 
 
The analysis was commissioned by LGVSD because of ongoing hydraulics issues in certain areas 
of the plant during high flow events, most notably the primary and secondary clarifiers.  The plant 
has two smaller primary clarifiers and one large primary clarifier.  The effluent from the smaller 
primary clarifiers is conveyed to the effluent of the larger primary clarifier, where the flow from 
all three clarifiers is combined prior to being discharged into the primary clarifier pump station. 
 
During high flow events, the plant cannot convey enough flow through the primary clarifiers and 
primary clarifier pump station, resulting in flow backing up into the primary clarifiers and 
submerging the effluent v-notch weirs.  Part of this hydraulics evaluation includes determining the 
capacity of the existing primary clarifiers and the effect of the level in the primary clarifier pump 
station wet well on the ability of the primary clarifiers to pass the peak flow of 24 MGD. 
 
 

37



 

 
Innovative Hydraulics      106 Maplewood Drive, Wexford, PA 15090      412-334-1637 

www.innovativehydraulics.net 
 

Software Development 

Innovative Hydraulics  
 
 
 
 
The other area of analysis included as part of this project is the evaluation of the hydraulics 
associated with the final clarifiers.  Final clarifier effluent flow is transmitted from each of the 
final clarifiers and is combined prior to being conveyed through an existing flow meter vault, 
which represents a significant hydraulic restriction in the secondary clarifier effluent flow.  After 
passing through the flow meter vault the secondary clarifier effluent is conveyed to the existing 
chlorine contact chamber influent distribution box.  LGVSD is currently in the process of 
modifying the layout of the secondary clarifier effluent to remove the hydraulic restriction 
associated with the flow meter in the secondary clarifier flow meter vault.  The modifications also 
include an upsizing of some of the effluent piping as well as a re-routing of the flow to the chlorine 
contact chamber influent distribution box.  The hydraulic analysis performed by IH examined both 
conditions to determine the hydraulic impact of the proposed secondary clarifier effluent 
modifications. 
 
Scope of Work 
 
The following Scope of Work items were established to be completed by IH and PWO as part of 
this project: 
 

 Review of Drawings and Data provided 
 Model inputs (flows, pipe diameters & lengths, fittings & valves, open channel 

characteristics, gates, weirs, etc.)  
 Development of understanding of flows and flow paths 
 Development of questions/information to obtain from LGVSD staff 
 Assumptions (e.g., friction coefficients, starting water surface elevations) used in analysis 
 Output/results from Visual Hydraulics© model 
 Meetings (at least 2) with PWO and LGVSD staff to discuss plant operations and answer 

questions 
 Memorandum summarizing results 

 
Hydraulic Analysis 
 
Two main hydraulic paths were considered as part of this hydraulic analysis: effluent flow from 
the primary clarifier system to the primary clarifier pump station and effluent flow from the 
secondary clarifier system to the chlorine contact chamber influent box.

38



 

 
Innovative Hydraulics      106 Maplewood Drive, Wexford, PA 15090      412-334-1637 

www.innovativehydraulics.net 
 

Software Development 

Innovative Hydraulics  
 
 
 
 
 
The following image shows a screenshot of the Visual Hydraulics LGVSD model:

39



 

 
Innovative Hydraulics      106 Maplewood Drive, Wexford, PA 15090      412-334-1637 

www.innovativehydraulics.net 
 

Software Development 

Innovative Hydraulics  
 
 
 
 
Flow from Primary Clarifiers to Primary Clarifier Pump Station 
 
The following hydraulic elements were analyzed for the primary clarifier effluent system, starting 
downstream at the primary clarifier pump station and proceeding upstream to the effluent v-notch 
weirs of both the two smaller primary clarifiers and larger primary clarifier. 
 
Element 1A (downstream starting point) – Primary pump station wet well 
 
Wet well elevation, peak flow conditions = 13.5 
 
Element 2A – Primary clarifier no. 1 effluent pipe 
Diameter = 30-inch 
Length = 680 feet 
Roughness “C” value = 110 
Fittings: Flush entrance (2), standard 90-degree elbow (2), 45-degree elbow (2), 22.5-degree 
elbow (2), Exit (2) 
Flow through pipe = 18 MGD 
 
Element 3A – Primary clarifier no. 1 effluent launder 
Launder length = 129 feet 
Launder width = 2 feet 
Launder invert at discharge = 13.5 
Launder slope = 0 ft/ft 
Flow through launder = 9 MGD (half of flow to clarifier) 
 
Element 4A – Primary clarifier no. 1 effluent v-notch weir 
Angle of v-notch = 90 degrees 
V-notch invert = 15.79 
Number of notches = 386 
Flow over weir = 18 MGD 
 
Element 1B - 30-inch primary clarifier no. 3 effluent to pump station 
Diameter = 30-inch 
Length = 375 feet 
Roughness “C” value = 110 
Fittings: 45-degree elbow (2), 22.5-degree elbow (2), Exit (1) 
Flow through pipe = 6 MGD 
 
Element 2B - 24-inch by 30-inch enlargement 
Angle of transition = 30 degrees 

40



 

 
Innovative Hydraulics      106 Maplewood Drive, Wexford, PA 15090      412-334-1637 

www.innovativehydraulics.net 
 

Software Development 

Innovative Hydraulics  
 
 
 
 
Diameter of larger pipe = 30-inch 
Diameter of smaller pipe = 24-inch 
Flow through transition = 6 MGD 
 
Element 2C - 24-inch portion of primary clarifier no. 3 effluent 
Diameter = 24-inch 
Length = 45 feet 
Roughness “C” value = 110 
Fittings: Flush entrance (1) 
Flow through pipe = 6 MGD 
 
Element 2D - Primary Clarifier no. 2 effluent to Primary Clarifier no. 3 
Diameter = 24-inch 
Length = 37 feet 
Roughness “C” value = 110 
Fittings: Flush entrance (1), 45-degree elbow (2), flow past tee branch (1), Exit (1) 
Flow through pipe = 3 MGD 
 
Element 2E - Primary clarifier 2/3 effluent launder 
Launder length = 110 feet 
Launder width = 2 feet 
Launder invert at discharge = 9.75 
Launder slope = 0 ft/ft 
Flow through launder = 1.5 MGD (half of flow to clarifier) 
 
Element 2F - Primary clarifier 2/3 effluent v-notch weirs 
Angle of v-notch = 90 degrees 
V-notch invert = 11.67 
Number of notches = 306 
Flow over weir = 3 MGD 
 
Flow from Secondary Clarifiers to Chorine Contact Chamber Influent Box 
 
The following hydraulic elements were analyzed for the secondary clarifier effluent system, 
starting downstream at the chlorine contact chamber influent box and proceeding upstream to the 
effluent v-notch weirs of the secondary clarifiers. 
 
Element 3A (downstream starting point) – Chlorine Contact Chamber (CCC) Influent Box 
 
Water elevation downstream of splitter weir, peak flow conditions = 10.5 

41



 

 
Innovative Hydraulics      106 Maplewood Drive, Wexford, PA 15090      412-334-1637 

www.innovativehydraulics.net 
 

Software Development 

Innovative Hydraulics  
 
 
 
 
 
Element 3B - CCC weir box weir 
Weir type – Rectangular contracted weir 
Contracted sides = 2 
Weir elevation = 13.5 
Weir length = 4 feet 
Flow over weir = 24 MGD 
 
Element 3C - 42-inch secondary effluent from meter vault to CCC box 
Diameter = 42-inch 
Length = 44 feet 
Roughness “C” value = 110 
Fittings: 22.5-degree elbow (2), tee, straight run to branch (1), Exit (1) 
Flow through pipe = 24 MGD 
 
Element 3D - Combining wye (36 x 42) at final clarifier no. 2 effluent 
Type of tee = Combining tee, flow from branch 
Main line diameter = 42-inch 
Branch diameter = 36-inch 
Flow from main line = 50% 
Flow from branch line = 50% 
Branch angle = 30 degrees 
Flow through tee = 24 MGD 
 
Element 3E - 36-inch effluent from clarifier no. 2 to wye 
Diameter = 36-inch 
Length = 45 feet 
Roughness “C” value = 110 
Fittings: 22.5-degree elbow (1), Flush entrance (1) 
Flow through pipe = 12 MGD 
 
Element 3F - 42-inch clarifier effluent to combining wye with cap 
Diameter = 42-inch 
Length = 43 feet 
Roughness “C” value = 110 
Fittings: 22.5-degree elbow (1), tee, branch to straight run (1) 
Flow through pipe = 12 MGD 
 
  

42



 

 
Innovative Hydraulics      106 Maplewood Drive, Wexford, PA 15090      412-334-1637 

www.innovativehydraulics.net 
 

Software Development 

Innovative Hydraulics  
 
 
 
 
Element 3G - 36-inch clarifier effluent from effluent box to 36x42 wye 
Diameter = 36-inch 
Length = 42.5 feet 
Roughness “C” value = 110 
Fittings: Flush entrance (1) 
Flow through pipe = 12 MGD 
 
Element 3H - Final clarifier effluent launders 
Launder length = 153 feet 
Launder width = 2.5 feet 
Launder invert at discharge = 17.58 
Launder slope = 0.0025 ft/ft 
Flow through launder = 6 MGD (half of flow to clarifier) 
 
Element 3I - Final clarifier effluent v-notch weirs 
Angle of v-notch = 90 degrees 
V-notch invert = 20.29 
Number of notches = 588 
Flow over weir = 12 MGD 
 
 
Model Results – Primary Clarifiers 
 
During high flow events (total flow of 24 MGD), in the model it was assumed that the smaller 
primary clarifiers would pass 6 MGD and the larger primary clarifier would pass 18 MGD.  It was 
assumed that flow to each secondary clarifier would be equal with each passing 12 MGD. 
 
Per information provided by LGVSD staff, the level in the primary pump station can operate as 
high as 13.5 feet during wet weather events.  Because both the two smaller primary clarifiers and 
larger primary clarifier discharge to this location, high water levels in the wet well have a direct 
effect on the water level in those primary clarifiers.  Once the model was set up in Visual 
Hydraulics, it was utilized to vary the level in the primary clarifier wet well to determine the effect 
that level would have on the capacity of the primary clarifier effluent system.  The following trials 
were performed by varying the level in the wet well to determine its effect on the hydraulic 
capacity of the system: 
 
  

43



 

 
Innovative Hydraulics      106 Maplewood Drive, Wexford, PA 15090      412-334-1637 

www.innovativehydraulics.net 
 

Software Development 

Innovative Hydraulics  
 
 
 
 
Table 1: Primary pump station level = 13.5 feet 
Location Invert Downstream 

Water Elevation 
Submerged? 

Smaller primary launder invert at outlet 12.31 14.08 Yes 
Smaller primary v-notch weir invert 14.23 14.09 Yes 
Larger primary launder invert at outlet 16.06 18.58 Yes 
Larger primary v-notch weir invert 18.35 18.81 Yes 

 
Table 2: Primary pump station level = 12.5 feet 
Location Invert Downstream 

Water Elevation 
Submerged? 

Smaller primary launder invert at outlet 12.31 13.08 Yes 
Smaller primary v-notch weir invert 14.23 13.14 No 
Larger primary launder invert at outlet 16.06 17.58 Yes 
Larger primary v-notch weir invert 18.35 18.13 No 

 
Table 3: Primary pump station level = 11.5 feet 
Location Invert Downstream 

Water Elevation 
Submerged? 

Smaller primary launder invert at outlet 12.31 12.08 No 
Smaller primary v-notch weir invert 14.23 12.91 No 
Larger primary launder invert at outlet 16.06 16.58 Yes 
Larger primary v-notch weir invert 18.35 18.04 No 

 
Table 4: Primary pump station level = 10.5 feet 
Location Invert Downstream 

Water Elevation 
Submerged? 

Smaller primary launder invert at outlet 12.31 11.08 No 
Smaller primary v-notch weir invert 14.23 12.91 No 
Larger primary launder invert at outlet 16.06 15.58 No 
Larger primary v-notch weir invert 18.35 18.04 No 

 
As can be seen from the previous tables, the primary clarifier launders/weirs exhibit some sort of 
submergence when the primary pump wet well level operates as low as 11.5 feet.  At an elevation 
of 10.5 feet in the wet well, there is no submergence.   
 
 
 
 

44



 

 
Innovative Hydraulics      106 Maplewood Drive, Wexford, PA 15090      412-334-1637 

www.innovativehydraulics.net 
 

Software Development 

Innovative Hydraulics  
 
 
 
 
Recommendation – Primary Clarifiers 
 
The existing effluent pipes are adequate to pass 24 MGD through the primary clarifiers as long as 
the level in the primary pump station wet well is maintained at a reasonable level.  It is therefore 
recommended that the existing primary clarifier pump station pumps be upgraded to increase 
capacity to maintain a level in the wet well that will prevent flows from backing up into the primary 
clarifier launders/weirs. 
 
Model Results – Secondary Clarifiers 
 
During high flow events (total flow of 24 MGD), it was assumed that the flow to each secondary 
clarifier would be equal with each passing 12 MGD. 
 
As was previously mentioned, LGVSD is currently in the process of modifying the layout of the 
secondary clarifier effluent to remove the hydraulic restriction associated with the flow meter in 
the secondary clarifier flow meter vault.  The modifications also include an upsizing of some of 
the effluent piping as well as a re-routing of the flow to the chlorine contact chamber influent 
distribution box.  This is a significant improvement in the hydraulics because the flow (up to 24 
MGD) is currently passed through a pipe diameter as small as 20-inches, which is causing 
significant head loss issues and resulting in launder/weir submergence in the secondary clarifiers.  
The following figure represents this proposed revised layout (highlighted in yellow): 
 
 
 
  

45



 

 
Innovative Hydraulics      106 Maplewood Drive, Wexford, PA 15090      412-334-1637 

www.innovativehydraulics.net 
 

Software Development 

Innovative Hydraulics  
 
 
 
 
For the modeling of the secondary clarifiers, Innovative Hydraulics modeled both the existing 
layout with the flow meter vault and a revised layout that removes the secondary clarifier effluent 
flow meter vault and re-routes flow in a fashion that improves the hydraulics and reduces head 
losses in the secondary clarifier effluent system. 
 
The following table compares the water elevation in the secondary clarifiers at various flows for 
both the existing layout (with the effluent flow meter vault) and the proposed modified effluent 
layout: 
 
Table 5: Water Elevation With and Without Improvements 
Flow Value Water elevation downstream of 

v-notch weirs, existing conditions 
Water elevation downstream of v-
notch weirs, proposed conditions 

10 MGD 18.37 18.37 
15 MGD 18.59 18.59 
20 MGD 20.28* 18.80 
24 MGD 22.57* 18.94 

* Invert elevation of v-notch weir is 20.29 
 
As can be seen from the above table, for the existing conditions the water elevation downstream 
of the secondary clarifier v-notch weirs is not affected until the flow is greater than 15 MGD, and 
then the launders begin to submerge.  At 20 MGD, the launder is fully submerged and the v-notch 
weir is nearly submerged.  At 24 MGD, the launders and weirs are fully submerged.  In 
comparison, the proposed modifications significantly improve the hydraulics of the system and the 
final clarifier effluent pipes are able to pass flow up to 24 MGD without submerging either the 
launders or the v-notch weirs. 
 
Recommendation – Secondary Clarifiers 
 
It is recommended that LGVSD proceed with the designed upgrades to the secondary clarifier 
effluent system that will eliminate the hydraulic restriction at the existing secondary clarifier flow 
meter vault.  The design upgrades also include enlarging some of the effluent pipes and reducing 
some of the existing fittings, which also helps reduce the head loss currently experienced by the 
plant.  If these improvements are made the model shows that the secondary effluent system can 
convey 24 MGD without having an effect on the secondary clarifier launder or weirs. 
 
  

46



 

 
Innovative Hydraulics      106 Maplewood Drive, Wexford, PA 15090      412-334-1637 

www.innovativehydraulics.net 
 

Software Development 

Innovative Hydraulics  
 
 
 
 
 
Sincerely, 

 
 
 
 
 

Dan Goodwin, PE 
Innovative Hydraulics 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
  

47



 

9 
 

 

Appendix B 

Secondary Clarifier Optimization Report 

Memo Dated November 7th, from Mr. Jason Warner, PE  

to Mr. Mike Cortez, PE, District Engineer 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

  

48



 

DATE:   November 7, 2023     

RE:  ASSESSMENT OF OPTIMIZATION OPPORTUNITIES – SECONDARY CLARIFIERS 

TO:  Mike Cortez, PE, District Engineer 

 

1.0  Summary 

In 2022, the Las Gallinas Valley Sanitary District (LGVSD) completed a major upgrade of its secondary 
process and recycled water production facilities.  With the upgrades, the District is several modest steps 
away from achieving 24 MGD of treatment capacity.  

Achieving 24 MGD of capacity will likely eliminate primary blending as well as a tentatively planned 
equalization basin.  The improvements made to expand clarifier capacity are also expected to reduce 
variability in average day effluent quality, leading to less solids to the recycled water plant.  Based upon 
these benefits and modest costs to achieve the new nameplate capacity, it is recommended that the 
District apply resources to achieve the 24 mgd peak capacity for Winter 2025/26 (within 2 years).   

The optimization assessment also included a review of historical performance data, drawing review, 
field testing, and computation fluid dynamics (CFD) modeling of the secondary clarifiers.  Here is a 
summary of the major findings. 

1. The secondary clarifiers possess capacity above their existing loading and are in excellent 
condition.  The secondary flocculation well is good but leaves room for enhancement. 

2. The historical lab data show significant variability in performance with periods of high secondary 
effluent solids (15 mg/L+) during average flows.  Optimization would reduce the frequency and 
severity of high solids events at average flows and peak wet weather. 

3. During the field testing, the secondary clarifiers were performing close to their theoretical best – 
with no settleable solids in the effluent.  The observed performance was excellent. 

4. The Return Activated Sludge (RAS) flow control is challenging to operate.  Efforts made to 
increase the primary effluent pump station capacity should also include hydraulically separating 
the two systems and providing remote control of RAS pumping rates. 

5. With optimization, the modeling results predict that the secondary clarifiers can be expected to 
achieve <10 mg/L of effluent suspended solids at 24 MGD. 

 

 

 

49



2.0 Review of Secondary Clarifier Design Drawings 

The secondary clarifiers were recently constructed and remain in new condition.  They are 100 foot in 
diameter with a 5.0 deep flocculation well.  The depth of the clarifier allows for additional flocculation 
volume (a deeper flocculation well) – which will be considered in the modeling/optimization effort. 

At 18 mgd, the surface overflow rate is 1146 gpd/sf which is within the recommended range (980-1,230 
gpd/sf – Metcalf and Eddy). During average flows, the clarifier operates near 285 gpd/sf which is below 
the typical range for average flows.  Given that most days of the year are near this loading rate, adding a 
third clarifier is not recommended.  The optimization recommended in this assessment will allow higher 
surface overflow rates above 1146 gpd/sf during the few days per year those flows occur. 

 

Figure 1: Partial Cross Section of Existing 100-foot Secondary Clarifier 

 

3.0 Review of Historical Secondary Clarifier Data 

Secondary clarifier performance was sound with most secondary effluent data in compliance with final 
effluent standards.  There were several days in excess of 30 mg/L including a value at 166 mg/L 
(3/10/23).  Performance during flows as high as 16 mgd were recorded, although the total number 
measured results above 12 mgd is 7 (a limited data set).   

The average secondary effluent TSS was between 7-8 mg/L.  While the averages are great, there is high 
variability.  4.2 percent of the results were equal to or greater than 20 mg/L and 1.6% present met or 
exceeded 30 mg/L.  The anomalies both at average and elevated flows suggest the plant would benefit 
from optimization during average flows for compliance and lower solids to the recycled water plant.   
Additionally, optimization is expected to provide 28-54% improvement during peak wet weather – 
depending on the exact scenario.  

A plot of the secondary effluent suspended solids vs. flow is shown in the following figure. 

Additional volume 
available for 
flocculation 

50



 

Figure 2: Secondary Effluent Suspended Solids vs Flow 

 

The following graph is a plot of secondary effluent results vs. sludge volume index (SVI).  The trendline 
shows a slight upward trend in effluent solids as the SVI increases.  Despite the general trend, there are 
many points with low SVI’s (100-150) with elevated effluent solids.  The effluent solids variability 
reinforces the benefits of optimization as a safety factor for compliance during average flows. 

It is also worth noting that many of the SVI results above 300 mL/g resulted in excellent effluent quality. 
This is because during low flows, poor settling floc particles (SVI>300 mL/g) filter water column as they 
settle.  At high flows – those in the 12-24 MGD range, it will be critical for operations to manage SVI’s to 
150 or below.  Before wet weather arrives in late October, operations should use a combination of 
higher dissolved oxygen setpoints, sodium hypochlorite to RAS, or other known strategies to achieve an 
SVI at or under 150.  Outside of wet weather, a maximum SVI target of 300 mL/g can be used. 

High variability at 
low flows. 

51



 

Figure 3: Secondary Effluent Suspended Solids vs SVI 

4.0 Secondary Clarifier Testing and Results 

Clarifier testing was performed on August 30th-31st.  The testing period was marked by warm weather 
and light breezes.  The clarifier remains in near new condition.    During the testing, the clarifier was 
producing high-quality effluent with effluent solids well below the plant’s historic average. 

Three sets of tests were performed, including Dispersed Suspended Solids (DSS), Flocculated Suspended 
Solids (FSS), and Effluent Suspended Solids (ESS) Testing.  All available data from the August 30 th and 
31st test dates are included in Figures 4, 5, and 6 that follow. 

Dispersed Suspended Solids Testing (DSS)   

Secondary Clarifier No. 1 was sampled using a 4.2-L Kemmerer sampler to determine the settling 
characteristics of the suspended solids.  Samples were collected from the clarifier inlet, midpoint, and 
just inside the effluent weir as shown in the figure below. 

52



 

Figure 3: Dispersed Suspended Solids (DSS) Sample Locations 

 

After collecting samples in the Kemmerer Sampler, the samples were allowed to settle for 30 minutes 
before withdrawing a portion of the supernatant for suspended solids testing.  The solids testing results 
are known as Dispersed Suspended Solids (DSS) and represent the non-settleable fraction of suspended 
solids.  The DSS results are a key input to the CFD model and help identify the upper limit of clarifier 
performance. 

 

 

 

53



Effluent Suspended Solids (ESS) Testing 

Effluent Suspended Solids (ESS) grab samples were collected from the test clarifier effluent launder 
approximately every hour during the testing.  Effluent Suspended Solids reflect actual performance 
during the time of the FSS and DSS testing.   

Flocculated Suspended Solids (FSS) Testing  

FSS are defined as being the solids that remain in the supernatant following optimum flocculation and 
settling for 30 minutes. In contrast to the DSS test, which is used to assess the flocculation state in the 
field, the FSS test attempts to simulate the optimum degree to flocculation improves settleability. The 
test is performed by flocculating the sample for 30 minutes at a rotational speed of 50 rpm and then 
allowing the sample to settle for 30 minutes.  After settling, the supernatant is sampled for a suspended 
solids analysis.  

Clarifier Testing Results and Analysis 

The DSS testing results for Secondary Clarifier No. 1 are provided in the figure below.  The dispersed 
suspended solids are the non-settleable fraction at each measured location.  The results show that 
settleability improves between the flocculation well and the effluent weir.  The effluent DSS values of 
4.5 and 3.5 mg/L represent the potential effluent quality (ie upper level of performance) from the 
clarifier under current operating conditions. 

 

Figure 4: Dispersed Suspended Solids Results 

54



Figure 5 compares the dispersed suspended solids results to the measured effluent solids.  The figure 
shows that the effluent solids was nearly identical to the dispersed effluent suspended solids sample.  
This means that during the testing, the clarifier was operating at its theorectical best – capturing all of 
the settleable solids.  This is a positive outcome and reflects sound performance at low surface overflow 
rates. 

 

 

Figure 5: Effluent Dispersed Suspended Solids vs Effluent Suspended Solids 

 

A Summary of Field Testing (Figure 6) compares the dispersed settling results (gold, light blue) with the 
flocculated samples (red and grey).  The results do not indicate a problem with existing flocculation, 
although the modeling results show an enhanced flocculation well will lead to significant improvements 
in effluent quality (28-54%).  The data reflects excellent performance of the clarifier during the testing. 

 

55



 

Figure 6: Summary of Test Results 

The results show the secondary clarifiers are performing well at low surface overflow rates.  The effluent 
solids are nearly identical to the dispersed effluent solids, indicating that little or no settleable solids are 
leaving the clarifier.   

Due to the low overflow rates during the testing, the CFD model will be used to evaluate the clarifier 
performance at higher flows. 

 

5.0 Secondary Clarifier Optimization –CFD Modeling Results 

The optimization evaluation included computation fluid dynamics (CFD) modeling of the Las Gallinas 
Secondary Clarifiers.  The clarifier model was built using a software program called ‘2Dc’, which was 
originally commissioned by the US EPA to allow for greater understanding of internal clarifier hydraulics.  
The results show that effluent quality improves by 28-54% when the flocculation well is deepened using 
a Flo-Clip Baffle.  The modeled baffle is similar to the one shown in the following photo. 

3.0

3.5

4.0

4.5

5.0

5.5

6.0

6.5

7.0

Secondary AM Secondary PM

To
ta

l S
us

pe
nd

ed
 S

ol
id

s 
(m

g/
L)

Summary of Test Results

Flocculated MLSS Midpoint DSS Effluent DSS Effluent SS (ESS)

56



 

Figure 5: Flo-Clip Baffle installation at the City of Vacaville 

 

The goal of the modeling effort was to evaluate the potential to increase the capacity of the existing 
clarifiers from 18 mgd to 24 mgd (or from 9 to 12 mgd per clarifier).  Other additional scenarios were run 
as well.  These include an 8 mgd/clarifier scenario (simulating predicted effluent quality from a third 
secondary clarifier) and an additional run with elevated SVI’s.  The elevated SVI scenario highlights the 
sensitivity of the clarifier capacity to SVI’s.  The elevated scenario shows that at an SVI of 165 (83rd 
percentile SVI’s) and flow of 24 mgd, the unmodified clarifier will produce effluent suspended solids of 
43 mg/L while the optimized clarifier will produce 31 mg/L.  The modeling shows that with optimization, 
two clarifiers can be expected to provide 24 mgd of capacity (with 75Th percentile SVI’s) while delivering 
secondary effluent suspended solids below 10 mg/L. 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

57



The ‘12 MGD – existing clarifier run’ (total plant flow of 24 MGD) shows that the predicted effluent 
suspended solids is 20.0 mg/L with the existing clarifiers.   

 

 

With optimization the effluent quality is predicted to improve to 9.6 mg/L or less than half of the 
unimproved state.  The model output is sensitive to the SVI.  For example, when the SVI is increased 
from the 75th percentile to the 83rd, the unimproved vs. optimized effluent quality become 43 mg/L vs. 
31 mg/L.  Optimization provides a significant factor of safety for regulatory compliance under all 
modeled scenarios. 

 

Figures 6 and 7: Comparison of 12 MGD – Existing vs. Optimized CFD Results 

Efflluent = 
20.0 mg/L 

Eff. = 9.6 mg/L 

58



To build understanding of the impacts of optimization, several additional scenarios were modeled 
beyond the original scope, including an 8 MGD/Clarifier scenario.  8 MGD per clarifier reflects the 
loading if 24 MGD were split across three clarifiers.  The results show that a third clarifier does not 
provide effluent quality benefits over two clarifiers with optimization.  

A Summary of all modeled scenarios is shown in the table below: 

LGVSD Secondary Clarifiers - Summary of Model Run Results   
Scenario Flow/Clarfier 

(MGD) 
SVI 

(mL/g) 
a 

MLSS 
(mg/L) 

Optimized Effluent 
TSS 

(mg/L) 

Improve. 
(%) 

1 9 146 2115 No 13.0  
2 9 146 2115 Yes 7.7 41% 
3 8 146 2115 No 11.0  
4 12 146 2115 No 20.0  
5 12 146 2115 Yes 9.2 54% 
6 12 165 2115 No 43.0  
7 12 165 2115 Yes 31.0 28% 

a SVI of 146 corresponds to 75th percentile    
a SVI of 165 corresponds to the 83rd percentile    

 

The analysis emphasizes the quality of the clarifier infrastructure installed during the 2018 Plant 
Upgrade Project.  With modest enhancements, the existing infrastructure can be expanded to provide 
24 mgd of capacity with two units in service.  Eliminating an equalization basin will likely save in excess 
of $12M (@2MG) as well as ongoing maintenance and rehabilitation expenses. 

6.0 Optimization Recommendations – Secondary Clarifiers 

The 2018 Secondary Treatment Expansion positions the District for sound operation for the next 50 
years.  The new clarifiers are large and well designed. The District is also well ahead of the nutrient 
treatment regulations for the San Francisco Bay.  Given the infrastructure in place, the District is only a 
few steps away from increasing the secondary capacity to 24 mgd with its existing secondary train.  24 
mgd will likely lead to the elimination of blending events – except for the most extreme wet weather 
events.   

Given the benefits and modest costs, Pacific Wastewater Optimization (PWO) recommends a strategy to 
achieve 24 MGD of secondary capacity.  The following actions are recommended.  While they are 
presented in order of priority, it is recommended that they are pursued simultaneously to allow 
elimination of blending prior to the next NPDES permit renewal (September 2025).   

1. Final Effluent Piping Capacity - Increase the effluent piping capacity to 24 MGD+ (Construction 
in Progress). 

2. Primary Effluent Capacity - Increase the primary effluent piping/pump station capacity to 24 
MGD (firm).  The pump station capacity improvements should be designed to lower the grade 
line of the existing primary effluent piping – to allow free flow from the primary clarifiers. 

59



An engineering analysis should be performed to evaluate the alternatives of increasing the size 
of the existing 5 pumps or adding additional pumping adjacent to the existing wetwell.  It is 
recommended that the RAS pumping be hydraulically isolated (i.e. the RAS and Primary Effluent 
flows should not influence each other). This will allow precise control of RAS rates and limit 
backwater impacts on the primaries from the secondary clarifiers.  Hydraulic isolation can be 
accomplished by installing a divide between the existing five pumps or re-routing the RAS 
pipeline to a dedicated wetwell adjacent to the existing.   
 

3. Secondary Clarifier Optimization - Optimize the existing secondary clarifiers to allow 24 MGD of 
treatment capacity.  Optimization provides greater water quality benefits than a third clarifier, 
with significantly less expense.  Install flocculation baffles on both secondary clarifiers.  
Eliminate the equalization basin from the Capital Budget.  ($480k) 
 

Recommendations 1-3 above will eliminate the need for equalization and likely eliminate primary 
blending events.  The improvements made to expand peak capacity will provide benefits to effluent 
quality year-round. The recommendation will amplify the benefits of the recent Secondary Treatment 
Expansion Infrastructure. 

Thank you for the opportunity to serve you and the LGVSD Team.   I will reach out to answer any 
questions and coordinate any next steps.  

Sincerely,   

 

Jason Warner, PE (No. 63190) 

Project Manager 

 

60



 

10 
 

 

Appendix C 

Las Gallinas Valley Sanitary District - SCADA Data from Major Storm 2/4/24 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

61



 

 

 Page 1 of 2 

  Agenda Summary Report                                            
         

 
To: Board of Directors 
From: Michael P. Cortez, PE, District Engineer 
 (415) 526-1518; mcortez@lgvsd.org  
Mtg. Date: May 16, 2024 

Re: Award of Design Contract to GHD for John Duckett Pump Station Electrical 
Upgrades and Terra Linda Trunk Sewer Creek Crossing Improvements 

Item Type:   Consent     X  Action        Information  Other             . 

Standard Contract:    Yes       X    No     (See attached) Not Applicable             . 
 

 
STAFF RECOMMENDATION 
Board to approve the award of a design contract with GHD for the combined John Duckett Pump 
Station Electrical Upgrades and Terra Linda Trunk Sewer Creek Crossing Replacement projects 
in the amount of $429,711. 
 
BACKGROUND 
In response to District staff request, GHD submitted a proposal for the following: 
 

1. John Duckett Pump Station (JDPS) Electrical Upgrades – For the replacement of existing 
electrical distribution system consisting of service entrance switchboard, motor control 
center, programmable logic controller, and variable speed drives with newer equipment to 
increase reliability, functionality, and maintainability of the existing pump station. Most of 
the existing electrical components at the pump station were installed in the mid-1980s or 
upgraded in the early 2000s. 
 

2. Terra Linda Trunk Sewer (TLTS) Creek Crossing Replacement – For the replacement of 
the exposed 18” gravity influent line across Gallinas Creek with a new pipeline with proper 
encasement, cover, and bedding to minimize the potential of sanitary sewer overflows 
(SSOs). The scope of work includes environmental assessment and CEQA permitting. 

 
District staff reviewed GHD’s proposal and deemed the fee estimate reasonable. The fee 
proposal in the amount of $429,711 is within the budget allocated for FY 2023-24. 
 
Brief Project History: 
 
The original scope of work for the JDPS portion of the project included the construction of a new 
access road and relocation of the overall pump station consisting of the electrical building and wet 
well to higher ground adjacent to their current location. The objective is to meet the maximum 
predicted sea level rise elevation by the year 2100. However, during predesign by GHD in 2015, it 
was determined that a levee or sea wall-type structure between the creek and pump station would 
be sufficient for flood protection. This enabled the District to reprioritize needs and defer 
construction since such type of flood control structures may be constructed at any time in the 
future when the need is eminent without significantly impacting pump station functionality. 

Item Number_____3E_____________ 

GM Review   _____CP____________ 

 

62

mailto:mcortez@lgvsd.org


 

 

 Page 2 of 2 

 
In addition, the 2022 hydraulic model developed by Hazen & Sawyer indicates that the existing 
pump station has adequate pumping capacity to meet the future demands of all proposed land 
development projects outlined in both City of San Rafael and County of Marin Housing Elements 
that are within the pump station tributary area. This eliminated the immediate need to increase 
pumping capacity and provided an opportunity for the District to reprioritize overall collection 
system needs such as the replacement of the exposed 18” trunk sewer crossing along Gallinas 
Creek immediately upstream of the existing JDPS wet well.  
 
The 7-year CIP Budget approved by the Board for FY 2023-24 for the John Duckett PS & HWY 
101 Terra Linda Trunk Sewer Design has a budget of approximately $1.56M. The reduced scope 
of pump station design work and the deletion of approximately 3,500 LF of trunk sewer 
improvements from the project resulted in a budget reduction of approximately $1M. Original 
project components such as the design and construction of Terra Linda Trunk Sewer 
Improvements and lining of the trunk sewer section under Hwy 101 will be included as separate 
future CIP projects in the 7-year CIP plan for Board consideration and approval in June 2024. 
 
PREVIOUS BOARD ACTION 
The Board authorized the award of a design contract to GHD in 2013 for the relocation of the 
John Duckett Pump Station and replacement of the entire length of the Terra Linda Trunk Sewer 
Creek Crossing.  
 

ENVIRONMENTAL REVIEW 
CEQA Initial Study/Mitigated Negative Declaration, which is included in the GHD scope of work. 
 
FISCAL IMPACT 
Not to exceed $429,711. The 2023/2024 Capital Budget includes adequate funding for this 
contract. 
 

63



2300 Clayton Road 
Suite 920 
Concord, CA 94520 
USA 
www.ghd.com 

 The Power of Commitment 

GHD, Inc. | 8410618 

Our ref: 8410618 

08 April 2024 

Mike Cortez 
District Engineer  
Las Gallinas Valley Sanitary District 
101 Lucas Valley Road,  
San Rafael, CA 94903 

RE: Proposal for Terra Linda Trunk Sewer and John Duckett Pump Station Design 

Dear Mr. Cortez, 

GHD Inc. is pleased to submit this proposal and scope of work for the preliminary design of the Terra Linda 
Trunk Sewer and John Duckett Pump Station Design.  

The project will be led locally by our proposed Project Manager, Greg Felter, P.E., based in GHD’s Concord 
office and Project Director, Casey Raines, P.E., based in GHD’s Irvine office. Greg has over fifteen (15) years 
of experience in the water sector and is an experienced project manager. Greg will serve as the primary point 
of contact for the Las Gallinas Valley Sanitary District (District) and will manage the design team to meet 
District’s expectations in terms of quality, budget, and schedule. Greg will be supported by Casey, who brings 
over 17 years of experience in the water sector. Casey will provide quality and project management support. 
Matt Winkelman will remain involved with the project to lead QA/QC efforts, working with Greg and Casey and 
the various discipline reviewers for the project. 

GHD’s technical expert Rick Guggiana will lead the electrical design as the Senior Electrical Engineer. With 
over thirty-four (34) years of experience in the water sector and expertise in sanitary sewer and lift station 
design, Rick has worked on various pump station projects (references can be provided upon request). Rick will 
be supported by Becca Keating, Staff Electrical Engineer. Rick has also been involved with this project since 
the beginning. 

The environmental portion of the project will be led by Andrea Hilton as the Environmental Planning Technical 
Director. With over twenty-one (21) years of experience in the environmental sector, Andrea has worked on 
various similar pipeline projects (references can be provided upon request). 

The following sections summarize the project understanding and proposed scope of work, fee, and schedule. 

1. Background & Project Understanding

The purpose of the project has evolved over time. At an earlier stage of project development, a significant portion 
of the Terra Linda Trunk Sewer (TLTS) would be replaced, to address hydraulic capacity and pipeline vulnerability 
where the pipeline is exposed in the bottom of Gallinas Creek upstream of the John Duckett Pump Station 
(JDPS). Pipeline replacement would involve tunneling of a new pipeline at a greater depth under both Highway 
101 and Gallinas Creek in order to meet permitting and environmental considerations from Caltrans and various 

64

http://www.ghd.com/


8410618  |  RE: Proposal for Terra Linda Trunk Sewer and John Duckett Pump Station Preliminary Design    2 
 

permitting agencies. In conjunction with this, the pump station would require modification to both accommodate 
a deeper incoming trunk sewer and incorporate various improvements for serviceability and capacity. 

The project scope has evolved over time, in part to address evolving District priorities and project considerations. 
The scope of services provided herein is based on the current project objectives as defined below for the trunk 
sewer and pump station: 

1. Reduce the risk of sanitary sewer overflows (SSOs) that could enter Gallinas Creek;  

2. Replace the portion of the trunk sewer crossing at Gallinas Creek with a new pipe at the same invert 
elevation. This new segment of the trunk sewer will be designed with intent to improve sediment flow 
within the creek and to lessen the pipeline’s vulnerability to potential impacts and add appropriate 
encasement for the pipe to reduce its likelihood of failure and improve overall resilience. Note that by not 
increasing the depth of the pipe and providing a new pipeline encasement that the pipe structure will 
remain exposed in the bottom of the creek. This approach is expected to reduce the risk of SSO that 
could enter Gallinas Creek, but to a lesser extent compared to constructing a new pipeline at a greater 
depth below the bottom of the creek; 

3. Replace the existing electrical distribution equipment, including service entrance switchboard, motor 
control center, and variable speed drives. The existing controls section, which houses the existing 
programmable logic controller (PLC) and associated items, will be relocated to suit any adjustments 
necessary due to the layout of the new electrical distribution equipment. The existing PLC modules will 
be replaced to provide current functionality with newer equipment to increase reliability and 
maintainability. Other improvements to the pump station that were included in previous design concepts, 
including, but not limited to the following are not part of the planned pump station design: relocation and 
deepening of the wet well, pumps, and associated mechanical components; sizing and/or relocation of 
the onsite generator; odor control and/or mitigation; expansion of pump station site improvements or 
access; and site security.  

The project will begin with a conceptual design submittal in which a conceptual approach to achieve the three 
objectives above is proposed and the detailed design approach is agreed upon with the District.  

Based on discussion with District staff and feedback received from the District Board, the major components of 
the work are as follows: 

• Detailed design of the electrical upgrades to JDPS. 

• Detailed design of the pipeline conveying the flow across Gallinas Creek to the JDPS and environmental 
analysis of the crossing. 

• Completion of the environmental documentation and the associated technical studies needed to 
complete the evaluation of impacts under the California Environmental Quality Act (CEQA), including 
identification of recommended mitigation measures. GHD environmental staff will coordinate with design 
staff to develop an integrated approach to advancing the project and completing required environmental 
permits that minimize potential environmental impacts. 

 

 

 

65



8410618  |  RE: Proposal for Terra Linda Trunk Sewer and John Duckett Pump Station Preliminary Design    3 
 

2. Scope of Work 

Based on GHD’s project understanding, the scope of design services is summarized below. Additional scope 
can be provided at a negotiated fee. 

Task 1. Project Coordination 

This task is for overall project management, team coordination, progress meetings, project administration, 
health and safety, and related managerial items. It also includes quality assurance and quality control (QA/QC), 
and project invoicing.   

1.1  Project Management: GHD will coordinate with team members and stakeholders during the design, 
including District staff. Discussions and meetings will be documented with meeting notes or via email. 
GHD will also maintain regular contact with District staff via phone calls and email to make sure 
communication remains open and consistent during this phase of the project. GHD will submit 
monthly invoices and progress reports to the District for our efforts on the Project. 

1.2 Quality Management and Meetings: GHD will prepare a Project Quality Plan (PQP) for the detailed 
design phase of the Project. The PQP communicates the QA/QC procedures and identifies the 
documentation required at each internal and external submittal. The PQP will serve as a living 
document to guide quality management throughout the Project. 

GHD’s scope and budget includes the following meetings:  

• One, 1-hour, virtual, kick-off meeting with District to review the scope of services, schedule, 
and project approach.  

• One, 1-hour, virtual meeting to review the Phase One deliverables  
• Three, 1-hour, virtual, meetings to review 60%, 90% and Final design packages.  
• Two, 4-hour, site visits to observe and document existing conditions, as well as discuss 

constructability issues. 

Deliverables: 

• Project Quality Plan (PQP) (electronic PDF)  
• Meeting agendas, minutes, and action items (electronic PDF 

Assumptions: 

• Design (Tasks 2 through 6) will be completed within 22 weeks of notice to proceed (NTP). Project 
management effort for Bid and Construction Support are accounted for in Tasks 6 and 7 respectively.  

• GHD has budgeted for four (4) staff to attend the kick-off meeting. 
• GHD has budgeted for one (1) staff to attend each of the two (2) site visits. 
• GHD has budgeted for three (3) staff to attend the three (3) design review meetings. 

 
Task 2. Conceptual Design  

GHD will prepare a conceptual design submittal which will identify the improvements necessary to JDPS and 
immediate upstream portion of the TLTS at its Gallinas Creek crossing. The design will review all available data 
and previous designs and provide an updated design with additional detail. The intent at this stage is to provide 
the District with a conceptual design that can be used for discussion and agreement of the detailed design 
scope. The conceptual design will propose an alignment for the trunk sewer. The conceptual design will also 

66



8410618  |  RE: Proposal for Terra Linda Trunk Sewer and John Duckett Pump Station Preliminary Design    4 
 

identify whether the segment crossing of Gallinas Creek should be replaced and lowered or rehabilitated and 
additional armoring constructed on the segment.  

2.1. Drawings: Drawings will be developed to depict a schematic of the proposed improvements to JDPS 
and the proposed pipeline alignment and construction method.  

The conceptual design will not include any details or specifications and the drawings produced will be used for 
discussion. No construction cost estimate will be prepared at this stage.  

Task 3. Environmental Technical Studies 

Environmental resource studies will be required to support CEQA and project permitting, specifically a 
delineation of wetlands and jurisdictional waters, special status plant surveys, a biological (wildlife) technical 
memorandum, and a cultural resource investigation. The cultural resources investigation will be prepared by 
qualified sub-consultant Sonoma State University – Anthropological Studies Center.  Environmental studies will 
be completed concurrent with the development of the conceptual design. 

Aquatic Resources Delineation Report 

Wetlands and other waters of the U.S./state will be mapped at project work areas, including access roads and 
staging areas. The wetland delineation will follow USACE Wetlands Delineation Manual (USACE 1987) and 
Regional Supplement to the USACE Wetland Delineation Manual: Western Mountains, Valleys and Coast 
Region (USACE 2010). Mapping will include the use of a high-accuracy GPS device. The Aquatic Resources 
Delineation Report will address all mapped three-parameter wetlands, and list anticipated jurisdictional status 
(i.e., federally or state jurisdictional). Maps and a final report will be prepared according to USACE standards.  

Botanical Surveys and Sensitive Natural Community Technical Memorandum 

Preliminary investigations regarding the potential for sensitive plant species to occur within the proposed 
project areas will include compiling data found in a nine-quad record search of the California Natural Diversity 
Database/Biogeographic Information and Observation System (CNDDB/BIOS), the California Native Plant 
Society (CNPS) Rare Plant Inventory, and a list of federal endangered and threatened species obtained from 
the USFWS Information for Planning and Consultation (IPaC) tool. A qualified botanist will conduct two 
seasonally appropriate special status plant and non-wetland Sensitive Natural Communities (SNC) survey 
using the current (2018) CDFW Protocols for Surveying and Evaluating Impacts to Special Status Native Plant 
Populations and Sensitive Natural Communities. The survey will consist of walking the project area during 
appropriate blooming periods to locate special status plant species identified through database searches. 
Potential Sensitive Natural Communities onsite will be documented in the field and classified at the alliance 
level according to the Manual of California Vegetation (Sawyer et al., 2009) using the Rapid Assessment 
method. Rare plants and SNCs (if present) will be mapped using a high-accuracy (sub-meter) GPS device. A 
report will detail the database search, survey results, and provide recommendations to avoid and minimize 
impacts to special status plant species. 

Biological Resource Report (Wildlife) 

GHD will complete a biological evaluation of potential habitat for special status wildlife species. A single site 
visit will occur. The report will be prepared so it may be used to effectively inform federal and state agencies, 
including the U.S. Army Corps of Engineers (USACE), USFWS, and CDFW, and will be appropriate for CEQA 
analysis. The Report will include: 

• Description of existing habitat and quality 
• Mapped habitat  
• Captioned photographs 
• Potential to occur table of special status species based on a nine-quadrant United States 

Geological Survey (USGS) quadrant database search  
• Recommend construction avoidance and minimization measures 

67



8410618  |  RE: Proposal for Terra Linda Trunk Sewer and John Duckett Pump Station Preliminary Design    5 
 

• Documentation of any species that may be adversely impacted or affected by the project, if any 

Cultural Resources Investigation 

Sonoma State University (SSU) will conduct a review of records, maps, and documents on file at the Northwest 
Information Center (NWIC) of the California Historical Resources Information System, Sonoma State 
University, and publications and maps at the Anthropological Studies Center. SSU will also contact the Native 
American Heritage Commission (NAHC) for a review of the Sacred Lands File and for contact information for 
the appropriate tribal communities; and contact listed communities and individuals regarding the archaeological 
sensitivity of the project area. The investigation will include an archaeological field survey of the above 
referenced location to identify and document cultural resources within the project area. A cultural resources 
study report documenting the results will be prepared. Up to one new resource will be recorded.  

Deliverables: 

• Draft and Final Aquatic Resources Delineation Report  
• Draft and Final Botanical and Sensitive Natural Community Technical Memorandum  
• Draft and Final Biological Resource Report  
• Draft and Final Cultural Resources Report  

Assumptions: 

• AB 52 Consultation will be led by the District. 
• For purposes of budget efficiency, field work for the aquatic resources delineation will occur 

concurrently with one of the special status plant surveys. 

• Up to one new cultural resource will be recorded. Additional resources to be recorded will require 
an additional cost. 
 

Task 4. CEQA Compliance 

GHD anticipates that the project will require completion of an Initial Study/Proposed Mitigated Negative 
Declaration (IS/MND) to comply with CEQA requirements. The CEQA IS/MND will be prepared following 
completion of the conceptual design. 

Kickoff Meeting and Project Description 

GHD’s project manager and environmental lead will attend a kick-off meeting with the District to discuss the 
project, data needs, and timeline for completion. A preliminary project description will be prepared which will 
serve as the basis for the environmental evaluation. The GHD environmental team will work with the District 
and GHD team to develop the project description. The project description will provide a clear and concise 
description of the project including project objectives, project components, timing and methods of installation, 
and project operation and maintenance activities. GHD will develop the project description following completion 
of the conceptual design and the determination of the selected alternative. The preliminary project description 
will be finalized and submitted to District staff for review and approval. When District comments are received, 
GHD will prepare a final Project Description. 

Administrative Draft Initial Study/Proposed Mitigated Negative Declaration (MND) 

GHD will prepare an administrative draft Initial Study/Proposed MND for review by the District. The document 
will address CEQA requirements to the degree necessary for an adequate evaluation of environmental impacts. 
The IS/MND will be prepared, noticed, and circulated in accordance with CEQA guidelines and requirements. It 
will consist of an Initial Study that would include an appropriate environmental checklist, graphics, and 
essential, feasible mitigation measures. The analyses, findings, and mitigations and recommendations from the 
technical studies will be incorporated into this document, as appropriate. 

68



8410618  |  RE: Proposal for Terra Linda Trunk Sewer and John Duckett Pump Station Preliminary Design    6 
 

It should be noted that, through the course of research and analysis, if any potential environmental impacts are 
found to be significant and unavoidable, even with the application of all feasible mitigation measures, GHD will 
recommend the preparation of an environmental impact report (EIR) pursuant to CEQA. Should this prove to be 
the case, GHD will provide a revised scope discussing EIR services. 

The Administrative Draft Initial Study /Proposed MND will be submitted to the District for review, and the Project 
Manager will attend a review meeting with the District staff to discuss comments. 

Screen Check Draft Initial Study/Proposed MND 

Following receipt of District comments, the Initial Study/Proposed MND will be revised and submitted to the 
District electronically for a final check prior to publication. 

Notice of Intent to Adopt, Notice of Completion, Mailing List 

A Notice of Intent to Adopt a Negative Declaration (NOI), Notice of Completion (NOC) for the State 
Clearinghouse, and a draft Mailing (Distribution) List will be prepared and submitted for District review in 
anticipation of publication. 

Public Draft Initial Study/Proposed MND 

Following approval of the Check Draft by the District, GHD will publish and circulate the Initial Study/Proposed 
MND for the required 30-day public review period. GHD will coordinate with District staff to ensure the NOI is 
filed with the Marin County County Clerk and the Marin County Independent Journal (as is customary, the 
District will pay for the newspaper notice separately). The NOC and the Initial Study/Proposed MND will be 
submitted to CEQASubmit for review by state agencies and the public.  

Administrative Draft Final Initial Study/MND 

Following the 30-day public review period, an Administrative Draft Final MND, Mitigation Monitoring Program 
(MMP) and draft resolution will be developed and submitted for the District’s review. The Administrative Draft 
will include written responses to agency and public comments received, and the MMP will identify assignments 
of responsibility and time frames for implementation, as required. For purposes of calculating the budget for this 
task, we assume no more than 30 comments will be received. 

Final Initial Study/MND and Public Meetings 

Following receipt of District comments, GHD will finalize the document. Copies of the Final Initial Study/MND 
will be prepared for District Board and District staff.  GHD will attend up to two meetings with the District. GHD 
will help prepare a presentation for the Board meetings at which the adoption of the Initial Study/Proposed 
MND is considered. GHD’s project manager and environmental lead will attend the meetings. 

File Notice of Determination 

Following adoption, GHD will file a Notice of Determination within five working days with the State Clearinghouse 
and the District will file with the Marin County Clerk’s office. As is customary, we will rely on the District to provide 
a check for the County Clerk and California Department of Fish and Wildlife filing fees (currently $2,764 + $50 
County Clerk processing fee). CEQA filing fees increase annually. 

Deliverables: 

• Draft and Final Project Description 
• Administrative Draft Initial Study/Proposed MND  
• Screen Check Draft Initial Study/Proposed MND; Notice of Declaration (NOI); Notice of Completion 

(NOC); Distribution List  
• Public Review Initial Study/Proposed MND  
• Final Initial Study/MND, if needed  

69



8410618  |  RE: Proposal for Terra Linda Trunk Sewer and John Duckett Pump Station Preliminary Design    7 
 

• Notice of Determination  

Assumptions: 

• The District will approve GHD staff as submitters on CEQAsubmit to support electronic filing 
• The District will make a hard copy of the IS/MND available at the District’s office for public review 

and on the District's website 
• No more than 30 individual comments will be received on the public review IS/MND 
• All potential environmental impacts will be mitigatable to a less than significant with incorporation of 

mitigation measures acceptable to the District 

Task 5. 60% Design 

GHD will prepare a 60% design submittal which will include a complete set of drawings including all anticipated 
details; with the intent of delivering as complete a design as possible for District review. The design will review 
all available data and previous designs and provide an updated design with additional detail. The intent at this 
stage is to provide the District with a moderately detailed design that includes most drawings and 
specifications.  

The design will entail the replacement of the sanitary sewer main crossing Gallinas Creek, between the existing 
manhole located in a commercial business parking area west of the creek and the JDPS. The 60% design will 
also include the design of either a pipeline replacement or rehabilitation and armoring of the existing pipeline 
crossing Gallinas Creek to the existing junction box. No modifications to the junction box will be made. The 
design will also rehabilitate or replace the existing sanitary sewer coming from the junction box to JDPS. Aside 
from electrical improvements and the reconnection of the existing sanitary sewer main, no upgrades will be 
made to JDPS. Also, the project does not include improvements or other modifications for the existing TLTS 
located upstream of the described project limit for the creek crossing. Survey was performed under previous 
iterations of the Trunk Sewer redesign in 2014, which will be used as the base topographic files for this design. 
Given the amount of time that has passed since the survey was performed, there may have been changes in 
the creek corridor, since it is a natural feature.  

5.1. Drawings: Drawings will be developed to depict the proposed sewer improvements for the trunk 
sewer to the JDPS and the electrical upgrades. The drawings will show the surveyed boundaries, 
topography, existing utilities, and other key features.  

5.2. Specifications: GHD will develop technical specifications, incorporating project-specific requirements. 
GHD will rely on its own standard specifications where possible and develop additional specifications 
for the projects to clearly describe the construction requirements. 

Front End specification sections (Division 00 and 01) will be prepared and formatted by the District. 
GHD will review and provide input on design-related specifications including scope, constraints and 
bid item descriptions.  

The 60% submittal will be provided to the District for review. Following review, GHD will meet with the District to 
review comments and discussion revisions, options, phasing, bid strategies and key coordination items (60% 
Design Review Meeting). 

Deliverables: 

• 60% Plans: electronic (pdf) 
• Contract and Technical Specifications: electronic (pdf and docx) 

70



8410618  |  RE: Proposal for Terra Linda Trunk Sewer and John Duckett Pump Station Preliminary Design    8 
 

Assumptions: 

• The District does not have any CAD standards that are required for this Project. 
• The District will provide one set of consolidated comments for the drawings and specifications. 

 
Task 6. Environmental Permitting 

Environmental permitting will commence following the completion of the 60% design. A State Lands 
Commission permit has been excluded based on previous email correspondence in April 2015, which indicated 
the slough at the location of the pipe is not under the jurisdiction of the State Lands Commission. The project 
site is also located outside the jurisdiction of the San Francisco Bay Conservation and Development 
Commission. Securing easements from the adjacent commercial properties is also not included in this project’s 
scope.  

Agency Pre-Permitting Coordination  

GHD will organize one virtual and one field-based pre-permitting meeting with jurisdictional agencies. The two 
events will be scheduled to accommodate staff from all agencies to the greatest extent possible. During the 
meetings, GHD and the District will present the project, timeline, design, and environmental approach. GHD will 
solicit feedback from the agencies that can inform the design and/or permitting approach. Meetings beyond 
these, including with other environmentally conscious groups, is excluded from the project’s scope.  

California Department of Fish and Wildlife LSAA 

GHD will prepare a Lake and Streambed Alteration Agreement (LSAA) package on EPIMS. Application 
materials will include the project description, design documents, and biological reporting. The Revegetation and 
Monitoring Plan (detailed below) will also be submitted.  

U.S. Army Corps of Engineers NWP 58  

GHD will prepare an application to the U.S. Army Corps of Engineers (USACE) under Nationwide Permit 
(NWP) 58 for Utility Line Activities for Water and Other Substances to cover the required in-channel work and 
any associated temporary wetlands impacts on either bank. The application will quantify the extent and type of 
impact on federally jurisdictional resources below ordinary high water and incorporate information from the 
completed supporting studies, such as the wetland delineation. 

San Francisco Bay Regional Water Quality Control Board Section 401 Water Quality Certification 

GHD will prepare an application to the Regional Board for a Clean Water Act 401 Water Quality certification to 
cover the required in-channel work and any associated temporary wetlands impacts on either bank. The 
application will quantify the extent and type of impact on state jurisdictional resources and incorporate 
information from the completed supporting studies, such as the wetland delineation.  

Biological Assessments - NMFS and USFWS (excluded) 

Based on preliminary project scoping and the generation of official species lists within the project area, 
Endangered Species Act (ESA) Section 7 consultation and/or conference with the United States Fish and 
Wildlife Service (USFWS) and National Marin Fisheries Service (NMFS) may be required for USACE to issue a 
Clean Water Act Section 404 permit for project activities conducted within the channel of Las Gallinas Creek.  
Steelhead, a federally protected species, are known to occur in Miller Creek, north of the project site, and have 
the potential to occur in Las Gallinas Creek. In addition, northwestern pond turtle is currently proposed for 
listing under ESA and may be approved for listing by the time the project goes to construction.  Therefore, we 
anticipate needing to address northwestern pond turtle during the Section 7 consultation process via what the 
USFWS refers to as “conference.”  However, for both species, we anticipate potential effects can be addressed 
in the Biological Resources Report, and appropriate avoidance measures implemented during construction, 
thus avoiding preparation of a Biological Assessment.  Although we cannot discount that a Biological 
Assessment may be required by the agencies during the consultation process, at this time we have excluded 

71



8410618  |  RE: Proposal for Terra Linda Trunk Sewer and John Duckett Pump Station Preliminary Design    9 
 

such preparation and propose that with preparation of the Biological Resources Report, implementation of in-
water work-windows and other avoidance measures, that preparation of a Biological Assessment can be 
avoided. 

Revegetation and Monitoring Plan 

GHD will complete a conceptual revegetation and monitoring plan to accompany the permit applications. The 
document will describe the plan to address any project-related impacts to natural vegetation, temporary 
impacts to wetlands, and associated post-project monitoring. The plan will include recommended planting 
palettes, plant spacing, revegetation success criteria required by agencies, and monitoring methods.   

Deliverables: 

• Draft and final permit packages for each of 3 agencies. Note CDFW’s application is submitted 
electronically on EPIMS and can be reviewed virtually with the District prior to submission if 
desired.  

• Draft and final Revegetation and Monitoring Plan 

Assumptions: 

• Work within Gallinas Creek is assumed to occur during the in-water work window of August 1 to 
October 15. Therefore, a Biological Resources Report is assumed to suffice for Section 7 
Consultation related to steelhead, and a Biological Assessment will not be required by National 
Marine Fisheries Service.    

• Northwestern pond turtle is not expected to be formally listed until fall of 2025.   
• Hydroacoustic analysis for impacts to listed species will not be necessary but can be provided if 

required via a contract modification. 
• The project is not anticipated to result in take of any California Endangered Species Act (CESA) 

listed species and a Consistency Determination (CD) and/or Incidental Take Permit (ITP) issued by 
the California Department of Fish and Wildlife (CDFW) is not warranted for this project. 

• GHD assumes any bank disturbance associated with trench disturbance or other improvements will 
result in temporary impacts to wetlands only. Permanent wetland impacts will not occur. GHD 
assumes agencies will not require compensatory mitigation for temporary impacts and a wetland 
mitigation will not be required. If agencies require compensatory mitigation for temporary impacts 
or if permanent impacts occur, GHD can prepare a mitigation plan and associated design under a 
future contract modification.  

• As impacts to wetlands will be only temporary, an alternatives analysis for the Regional Board will 
not be required.  

• Project design will qualify for a NWP 58 with the USACE. An Individual Permit will not be required, 
and alternatives analysis will not be required. 

• Permit fees are excluded; GHD assumes the District will directly pay the permit fee to each agency 
(Regional Board and CDFW). 

• A lease is not required from State Lands Commission (per correspondence with SLC in 2015). 
• Gallinas Creek at this location is outside of Bay Conservation and Development Commission 

jurisdiction. 

 
Task 7. 90% Design 

72



8410618  |  RE: Proposal for Terra Linda Trunk Sewer and John Duckett Pump Station Preliminary Design    10 
 

Following the 60% Design Review Meeting and receipt of District comments, GHD will prepare the 90% Design 
submittal. The intent of the 90% Design submittal is to address all District comments from the 60% submittal 
and provide an updated design that is complete and inclusive of all design information, details, notes, and 
technical specifications.  

The technical specifications will incorporate all project requirements, include the District provided front-end 
specifications, and be consistent and thorough.  

At 90%, GHD will develop an Engineer’s Opinion of Probable Construction Cost (Cost Estimate). This will 
outline major construction costs, indirect costs and an appropriate construction and estimating contingency.  

The 90% submittal will be provided to the District for review. Following review, GHD will meet with the District to 
review comments and revisions, options, phasing, bid strategies and key coordination items (90% Design 
Review Meeting). 

Deliverables: 

• 90% Plans: electronic (pdf) 
• Contract and Technical Specifications: electronic (pdf and docx) 
• Construction Cost Estimate: electronic (pdf and xlsx) 

Assumptions: 

• The District will provide one set of consolidated comments for the drawings and specifications. 
 
Task 8. Final Design 

GHD will finalize the design and deliver a complete set of biddable contract documents. The plans, 
specifications and cost estimate will be finalized based on the District’s comments on the 60% and 90% Design 
submittals.  

GHD will schedule a meeting with the District to summarize updates from the previous submittal and confirm 
acceptance of the final design. Following acceptance by District staff, GHD will stamp and sign the final 
drawing and technical specifications set. 

Deliverables: 

• Final Plans: electronic (pdf and dwg) 

• Contract and Technical Specifications: electronic (pdf and docx) 
• Construction Cost Estimate: electronic (pdf and xlsx) 

Assumptions: 

• GHD has budgeted to address only minor edits (i.e., formatting issues, spelling errors, etc.) 
following Final Design agreement by the District. 

• The District will provide one set of consolidated comments for the drawings and specifications. This 
is assumed to be the final set of comments from the District. 

 
Task 9. Bid Support Services 

GHD will be available during the bid period to assist the District with technical questions related to the design 
and to prepare technical bid document revisions, which the District may need to be issued by addenda. We 
assume that questions will be received by, and subsequent responses, will be communicated through the 
District. Questions from prospective bidders that are directed to GHD will be re-directed to the District for 
proper documentation.  

73



8410618  |  RE: Proposal for Terra Linda Trunk Sewer and John Duckett Pump Station Preliminary Design    11 
 

GHD will assist the District with preparing Addenda, as appropriate, to clarify, correct, or change design-related 
items in the Bid Documents in response to questions and clarification requests received during the project’s bid 
phase.  

GHD will attend and assist the District in conducting the pre-bid conference. GHD will prepare notes from the 
pre-bid conference and assist the District in documenting questions asked. 

GHD will assist the District in reviewing the bids received with the intent of confirming the lowest responsive 
and responsible bidder. 

Upon Contractor selection, GHD will prepare Conformed Construction Documents incorporating changes made 
to the bid documents. 

Deliverables: 

• Draft and final meeting notes: electronic (pdf) 
• Conformed Construction Plans: electronic (pdf and dwg) 

• Conformed Construction Contract and Technical Specifications: electronic (pdf and docx) 

Assumptions: 

• The District will compile bidder questions and coordinate responses. 
• GHD has budgeted to respond to up to five (5) RFIs related to technical items and the design. 
• The District will coordinate and issue addenda to prospective bidders. 
• GHD has budgeted for preparation of up to two (2) addenda. 
• GHD has budgeted for one (1) staff to attend a two-hour pre-bid conference. 

 
Task 10. Construction Support Services   

During construction, GHD will review key technical submittals and shop drawings, respond to Contractor 
Requests for Information (RFIs), and attend Project meetings and site visits as indicated below. We recognize 
that the final scope of this task may change as the Project design is finalized. As requested by the District, and 
for purposes of this proposal we have included the following: 

• Review of up to twenty-five (25) submittals, including two review cycles. 
• Response to up to fifteen (15) RFIs, including two review cycles. 
• Attend one (1) construction kick-off meeting with the District and selected Contractor. 
• Preparation of record drawings based on timely redlined markups by the Contractor. 

Deliverables: 

• Response to RFIs and submittals: electronic (pdf)  
• Observation photos and notes: electronic (pdf) 
• Record Drawings: electronic (pdf and dwg) 

Assumptions: 

• District will provide a Resident Engineer and manage the construction project. GHD will provide 
support and assistance as described above.  

• Special inspections are not needed.  
• District will manage and process Contract Change Orders (CCOs). 
• District will manage and process submittals and Requests for Information (RFIs). 

74



8410618  |  RE: Proposal for Terra Linda Trunk Sewer and John Duckett Pump Station Preliminary Design    12 
 

• District will track completeness of Contractor redlines (record drawings). 
• District will manage and process Progress Payments. 
• Contractor shall be solely responsible for site safety. 
• Compensation for Tribal representatives is not included in the cost of the study. If Tribal 

representatives require compensation for monitoring, an amendment to this agreement will be 
prepared, or the Tribe will contract directly with the District. 

Task 11. Community Engagement 

GHD will make one presentation to the District Board and the attending public with a focus on the construction 
impacts to the community. The presentation with focus on the anticipated project impacts, including project 
schedule, CEQA, and permitting mitigation measures. GHD will prepare basic graphics for the presentation.  

Deliverables: 

• PowerPoint presentation with graphics; electronic (ppt and pdf)  
 

Task 12. Design Contingency 

A contingency is provided for this Scope of Services for additional services that may be required for the project. 
The use of the project contingency will be based on written authorization by the District to proceed.  

General Assumptions  
• The District will provide front end specification sections. GHD will review, format, and provide input as 

needed to reflect project specific requirements and scope.  
• Drawings will be prepared using AutoCAD Civil 3D 2018 or newer at a “22x34” sheet size. 
• GHD has budgeted for two review cycles, each with one set of consolidated comments. 
• GHD does not supervise or direct the Work of the Contractor. The Contractor shall be solely responsible 

for and have control over construction means, methods, techniques, sequences, and procedures and for 
coordinating all portions of the Work under the Contract. 

• This document is and shall remain the property of GHD. The document may only be used for the purpose 
of assessing our offer of services and for inclusion in documentation for the engagement of GHD. 
Unauthorized use of this document in any form whatsoever is prohibited. 

• Any fees (e.g. CEQA, permits) will be paid for by the District.  
• If this contract is not awarded within 30 days of the date on the cover letter, GHD reserves the right to 

revise the fee.  
• The District has the pertinent easements to facilitate construction in the areas identified. If easements are 

not already available, the District is responsible for obtaining necessary easements to facilitate temporary 
and permanent project needs. 

Scope Exclusions  
• Geotechnical investigation 
• Survey 
• Potholing 
• SWPPP 

75



8410618  |  RE: Proposal for Terra Linda Trunk Sewer and John Duckett Pump Station Preliminary Design    13 
 

• Non-electrical upgrades to JDPS or the junction box  
• Design of Force Main from JDPS  
• Design of trunk sewer upstream of Gallinas Creek crossing 
• Land and easement acquisition, including temporary and permanent easements 
• Construction-phase biological monitoring 
• Construction-phase fish relocation 
• Hard copies of deliverables 

3. Fee 

GHD proposes a time-and-materials fee not to exceed $429,711 without written authorization to complete this 
scope of services. A detailed breakdown of the fee is included as Attachment 1. Services not included in this 
proposal can be provided by a negotiated fee at current rates. 

4. Schedule 

GHD will comment the project following receipt of NTP. GHD anticipates this project will take 81 weeks to 
complete the design portion of the project (Task 2 through Task 8) from the kick-off meeting. A summary of 
anticipated milestone dates from NTP is provided below. The schedule assumes that the District will provide 
comments prior to the design review meeting. The final schedule will be confirmed with the District during the 
Kick-Off Meeting.  

Milestone Proposed Timeline   

Notice-to-Proceed (NTP) April 2024 

Kick-Off Meeting 1 Week from NTP 

Site Visit 2 Weeks from Kick-off Meeting 

Conceptual Design 8 Weeks from Kick-off Meeting 

Environmental Technical Studies 4 Months from Kick-off Meeting 

CEQA Compliance  24 Weeks from Kick-off Meeting 

60% Design Submittal  12 Weeks from Kick-off Meeting 

60% Design Review Meeting  2 Weeks from 60% Design Submittal 

Environmental Permitting   40 Weeks from 60% Design Review Meeting 

90% Design Submittal 4 Weeks from Environmental Permitting 

90% Design Review Meeting 2 Weeks from 90% Design Submittal 

76



8410618  |  RE: Proposal for Terra Linda Trunk Sewer and John Duckett Pump Station Preliminary Design    14 
 

Milestone Proposed Timeline   

Final Design Submittal 4 Weeks from 90% Design Review Meeting 

Final Design Review Meeting 2 Weeks from Final Design Submittal 

Bid Advertisement 1 Week from Final Design Meeting 

Bid Opening 4 Weeks from Bid Advertisement 

Construction Mobilization  4 Weeks from Bid Opening 

Construction/Project Completion  6 Months   

 

GHD's standard terms and conditions apply until the District’s agreement terms are provided.  

 

Regards 
 

 
Matt Winkelman 
Principal 

707.236.1546 
Matt.Winkelman@ghd.com 

 
 
 

 
 
Casey Raines  
Project Director 

949.585.5212 
Casey.Raines@ghd.com 

 
  

77



8410618  |  RE: Proposal for Terra Linda Trunk Sewer and John Duckett Pump Station Preliminary Design    15 
 

 

Attachment 1  
Fee Breakdown 
  
  

78



 

Terra Linda Trunk Sewer and John Duckett Pump Station Design
8410618

Description
Project 
Director QA/QC

Project 
Manager

Project 
Engineer Staff Engineer

Environmen
tal

CAD 
Oversight

Environmen
tal Permitting Sr. Biologist Biologist

Botany and 
Wetlands CEQA GIS Admin

Electrical 
Lead

Electrical 
Engineer Total Hours Labor Total Subs Subs Markup Total Subs

Mileage and 
Travel Disb. Fee Total Disb.

Estimated 
Project Total

Casey 
Raines 

Matt 
Winkelman Greg Felter

Lawrence 
Downs - TBD 

Kellen Hauser -
TBD

Andrea 
Hilton Jim Bruce

Kristine 
Gaspar Sam Moose

Stephen 
Peterson

Miles 
Hartnett

Kolby 
Lundgren

Christian 
Hernandez

Jesse 
Lopez TBD

Rick 
Guggiana 

Becca 
Keating 

$302 $400 $251 $209 $149 $272 $243 $272 $209 $272 $209 $209 $170 $200 $166 $302 $170 
Task1 Project Coordination 6 6 54 4 0 16 4 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 15 0 0 105 $26,416 $0 $0 $0 $250 $683 $933 $27,349 

Subtask 1.1 Project Management 4 4 40 0 0 2 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 15 0 0 65 $15,882 $0 $0 $0 $0 $423 $423 $16,305 
Subtask 1.2 Quality Management and Meetings 2 2 14 4 0 14 4 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 40 $10,534 $0 $0 $0 $250 $260 $510 $11,044 

Task2 Conceptual Design  2 1 0 0 8 6 4 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 28 18 67 $16,316 $0 $0 $0 $0 $436 $436 $16,752 
Subtask 2.1 Conceptual Design Drawings 2 1 0 0 8 6 4 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 28 18 67 $16,316 $0 $0 $0 $0 $436 $436 $16,752 

Task3 Environmental Technical Studies 0 0 4 0 8 10 0 1 0 24 48 126 0 32 4 0 0 257 $55,146 $9,050 $1,358 $10,408 $2,200 $1,671 $3,871 $69,424 
Subtask 3.1 Aquatic Resources Delineation 0 0 1 0 2 4 0 0 0 0 0 50 0 12 0 0 0 69 $14,487 $0 $0 $0 $0 $449 $449 $14,936 
Subtask 3.2 Botanical Surveys and Sensitive Natural Community Techn Memo 0 0 1 0 2 2 0 0 0 0 0 76 0 12 0 0 0 93 $19,377 $0 $0 $0 $1,200 $605 $1,805 $21,182 
Subtask 3.3 Biological Resources Report 0 0 1 0 2 2 0 0 0 24 48 0 0 8 0 0 0 85 $19,253 $0 $0 $0 $1,000 $553 $1,553 $20,806 
Subtask 3.4 Cultural Resources Investigation 0 0 1 0 2 2 0 1 0 0 0 0 0 0 4 0 0 10 $2,029 $9,050 $1,358 $10,408 $0 $65 $65 $12,502 

Task4 CEQA Compliance 0 0 19 0 16 48 0 4 124 0 10 0 152 24 0 0 0 397 $79,943 $0 $0 $0 $200 $2,581 $2,781 $82,724 
Subtask 4.1 CEQA Kickoff Meeting and Project Description 0 0 4 0 2 2 0 0 0 0 0 0 16 8 0 0 0 32 $6,166 $0 $0 $0 $0 $208 $208 $6,374 
Subtask 4.2 Admin Draft ISMND and Review Meeting 0 0 6 0 4 22 0 2 72 0 10 0 84 8 0 0 0 208 $41,648 $0 $0 $0 $0 $1,352 $1,352 $43,000 
Subtask 4.3 Screen Check Draft ISMND 0 0 2 0 2 8 0 0 20 0 0 0 16 4 0 0 0 52 $10,676 $0 $0 $0 $0 $338 $338 $11,014 
Subtask 4.4 Noticing and Circulation 0 0 1 0 0 2 0 0 0 0 0 0 10 0 0 0 0 13 $2,495 $0 $0 $0 $0 $85 $85 $2,580 
Subtask 4.5 Public Review Draft ISMND 0 0 1 0 2 4 0 0 16 0 0 0 8 0 0 0 0 31 $6,341 $0 $0 $0 $0 $202 $202 $6,543 
Subtask 4.6 District Review Draft Final ISMND 0 0 1 0 2 8 0 0 8 0 0 0 8 4 0 0 0 31 $6,557 $0 $0 $0 $0 $202 $202 $6,759 
Subtask 4.7 Final ISMND, Public Meetings, NOD 0 0 4 0 4 2 0 2 8 0 0 0 10 0 0 0 0 30 $6,060 $0 $0 $0 $200 $195 $395 $6,455 

Task5 60% Design  4 20 4 18 56 0 8 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 44 40 194 $44,350 $0 $0 $0 $0 $1,261 $1,261 $45,611 
Subtask 5.1 60% Design Drawings 4 16 2 12 40 0 8 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 32 40 154 $34,986 $0 $0 $0 $0 $1,001 $1,001 $35,987 
Subtask 5.2 60% Desgin Specifications 0 4 2 6 16 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 12 0 40 $9,364 $0 $0 $0 $0 $260 $260 $9,624 

Task6 Environmental Permitting 0 2 18 0 18 16 0 0 120 0 0 36 0 12 0 0 0 222 $47,356 $0 $0 $0 $200 $1,443 $1,643 $48,999 
Subtask 6.1 Agency Pre-Permitting Coordination 0 2 4 0 2 4 0 0 12 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 24 $5,698 $0 $0 $0 $200 $156 $356 $6,054 
Subtask 6.2 CDFW Lake & Streambed Alteration Agreement 0 0 4 0 4 2 0 0 36 0 0 0 0 4 0 0 0 50 $10,468 $0 $0 $0 $0 $325 $325 $10,793 
Subtask 6.3 US Army Corp of Engineers NWP 58 0 0 4 0 2 2 0 0 30 0 0 0 0 4 0 0 0 42 $8,916 $0 $0 $0 $0 $273 $273 $9,189 
Subtask 6.4 SF Bay RWQCB 401 Water Quality Certification 0 0 4 0 6 4 0 0 36 0 0 0 0 4 0 0 0 54 $11,310 $0 $0 $0 $0 $351 $351 $11,661 
Subtask 6.6 Revegetation and Monitoring Plan 0 0 2 0 4 4 0 0 6 0 0 36 0 0 0 0 0 52 $10,964 $0 $0 $0 $0 $338 $338 $11,302 

Task7 90% Design 2 13 6 16 48 0 6 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 48 48 187 $41,920 $0 $0 $0 $0 $1,216 $1,216 $43,136 
Subtask 7.1 90% Design Drawings 2 8 2 8 24 0 6 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 32 40 122 $27,476 $0 $0 $0 $0 $793 $793 $28,269 
Subtask 7.2 90% Design Specifications  0 4 2 4 16 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 12 0 38 $8,946 $0 $0 $0 $0 $247 $247 $9,193 
Subtask 7.3 90% Construction Cost Estimate 0 1 2 4 8 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 4 8 27 $5,498 $0 $0 $0 $0 $176 $176 $5,674 

Task8 Final Design 2 7 6 6 16 0 4 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 8 10 59 $13,636 0 0 $0 $0 $384 $384 $14,020 
Subtask 8.1 Final Design Drawings 2 4 2 4 12 0 4 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 4 8 40 $8,870 $0 $0 $0 $0 $260 $260 $9,130 
Subtask 8.2 Final Design Specifications  0 2 2 2 4 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 2 0 12 $2,920 $0 $0 $0 $0 $78 $78 $2,998 
Subtask 8.3 Final Construction Cost Estimate 0 1 2 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 2 2 7 $1,846 $0 $0 $0 $0 $46 $46 $1,892 

Task9 Bid Support Services 3 1 6 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 8 16 34 $7,948 0 0 $0 0 $221 $221 $8,169 
Subtask 9.1 Bid Support Services 2 0 4 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 4 0 10 $2,816 $0 $0 $0 $0 $65 $65 $2,881 
Subtask 9.2 Conformed Plans and Specifications 1 1 2 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 4 16 24 $5,132 $0 $0 $0 $0 $156 $156 $5,288 

Task10 Construction Support Services 2 1 18 24 76 12 8 0 16 0 0 0 0 0 0 16 24 197 $39,326 0 0 $0 0 $1,281 $1,281 $40,607 
Subtask 10.1 Construction Support Services 1 1 16 24 60 12 4 0 16 0 0 0 0 0 0 16 16 166 $33,806 $0 $0 $0 $0 $1,079 $1,079 $34,885 
Subtask 10.2 Record Drawings 1 0 2 0 16 0 4 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 8 31 $5,520 $0 $0 $0 $0 $202 $202 $5,722 

Task11 Community Engagement 2 4 8 0 0 8 8 4 0 0 0 0 0 0 4 0 0 38 10084 0 0 $0 250 $247 $497 $10,581 
Subtask 11.1 Community Engagement 2 4 8 0 0 8 8 4 0 0 0 0 0 0 4 0 0 38 $10,084 $0 $0 $0 $250 $247 $497 $10,581 

Task12 Design Contingency 2 2 4 8 32 8 0 4 8 0 0 0 8 0 0 8 24 108 21640 0 0 $0 0 $702 $702 $22,342 
Subtask 12.1 Design Contingency 2 2 4 8 32 8 0 4 8 0 0 0 8 0 0 8 24 108 $21,640 $0 $0 $0 $0 $702 $702 $22,342 

Total Labor Hours 25 57 147 76 278 124 42 13 268 24 58 162 160 68 23 160 180 1865 $404,081 $9,050 $1,358 $10,408 $3,100 $12,123 $15,223 $429,711 
x Estimated Project Total $7,550 $22,800 $36,897 $15,884 $41,422 $33,728 $10,206 $3,536 $56,012 $6,528 $12,122 $33,858 $27,200 $13,600 $3,818 $48,320 $30,600 1865 $404,081 $9,050 $1,358 $10,408 $3,100 $12,123 $15,223 $429,711 

79



 

 

 Page 1 of 1 

  Agenda Summary Report                                            
         

 
To: Board of Directors 
From: Michael P. Cortez, PE, District Engineer 
 (415) 526-1518; mcortez@lgvsd.org  
Mtg. Date: May 16, 2024 

Re: Award of Contract to Anvil Builders for Treatment Plant Standby Generator 
Upgrade 

Item Type:   Consent     X  Action        Information  Other             . 

Standard Contract:    Yes       X    No     (See attached) Not Applicable             . 
 

 
STAFF RECOMMENDATION 
Board to approve the award of contract to Anvil Builders, Inc. for the Treatment Plant Standby 
Generator Upgrade project in the amount of $744,500. 
 
BACKGROUND 
On April 30, 2024, District staff opened bids for the Treatment Plant Standby Generator Upgrade 
project, and Anvil Builders, Inc. is the apparent low bidder in the amount of $744,500. The project 
provides for the decommissioning and offsite disposal of an existing standby generator in the 
Equipment Building, and the installation of approximately 750 LF of power cable from the new 1-
megawatt standby generator near the Electrical Building. The standby generator in the Equipment 
Building has exceeded its useful life, and standby power for the equipment it currently serves will 
now be provided by the new 1-megawatt standby generator near the Electrical Building installed 
in the recent treatment plant upgrade project. Bid result is as follows: 
 

Bidder       Bid Price 
1. Anvil Builders, Inc. (Emeryville)    $744,500* 
2. CWS Construction Group, Inc. (Novato)   $835,000 

* - Apparent low bidder. 
 
The Engineer’s estimate is $800,000. Anvil’s bid price is within the budget reallocation from 
TWAS Enclosure/Sludge Basin & Reception Pad Project authorized by the Board on March 7, 
2024. Aqua Engineering provided support during bid phase and will continue providing support 
during construction using the remaining balance of the budget reallocation. 
 
PREVIOUS BOARD ACTION 
N/A 
 

ENVIRONMENTAL REVIEW 
N/A 
 
FISCAL IMPACT 
$744,500 

Item Number_______3F___________ 

GM Review   _____CP____________ 

 

80

mailto:mcortez@lgvsd.org


 

 

X:\BOARD\Agenda\Agenda 2024\Agenda Packet\05162024\AuditEngagement\ASR Audit Engagement Letter.docx Page 1 of 1 

Agenda Summary Report                                            
         

 

To: Board of Directors 

From: Dale McDonald, Administrative Services Manager  
 (415) 526-1519   dmcdonald@lgvsd.org 
Meeting Date: May 16, 2024 

Re: Audit Engagement Letter 

Item Type:   Consent  X  Action        Information      X Other             . 

Standard Contract:    Yes     No  (See attached) Not Applicable      X       . 
 

 
STAFF RECOMMENDATION 
Receive audit engagement letter for the year ending June 30, 2024 and authorize the Board 

President to ratify and accept the services and arrangements described in the letter. 

 
BACKGROUND   
The District has a financial audit conducted each year for audit periods ending June 30. The 
accounting firm of Nigro & Nigro has audited the District’s two previous fiscal year financials. This 
will be the third year the financial audit will be performed by Nigro & Nigro.  
 
The audit engagement letter is a formal document outlining the terms and responsibilities of an 
audit engagement between an auditor and their client. Both parties sign engagement letters to 
indicate their agreement to the terms outlined in the engagement letter. Management has 
reviewed the engagement letter and found it acceptable. It is similar to the previous year’s 
engagement letters and the scope of work is standard in the audit industry.  
 
PREVIOUS BOARD ACTION 
On June 16, 2022, the District Board authorized award of contract to Nigro & Nigro to perform 
the District’s annual financial audits for fiscal years 2022 through 2024, with the option to  
extend the contract for an additional two fiscal years through 2026. 
 
 
ENVIRONMENTAL REVIEW 
N/A 
 
FISCAL IMPACT 
$21,500 per fiscal year, previously authorized and budgeted.  
 
 
 
  
 
 

Item Number________3G______ 

GM Review   ______CP________ 

81

mailto:dmcdonald@lgvsd.org


Page 1 of 8 
 

 

 

 

 

 

May 1, 2024 

 
Board of Directors and Mr. Curtis Paxton, General Manager 
Las Gallinas Valley Sanitary District 
101 Lucas Valley Road, Suite 300 
San Rafael, CA 94903 

We are pleased to confirm our understanding of the services we are to provide the Las Gallinas Valley 
Sanitary District (District) as of and for the year ended June 30, 2024.  

Audit	Scope	and	Objectives	

We will audit the business-type activities and each major fund of the District, as of June 30, 2024 and for the 
year then ended and the related notes, which collectively comprise the District's basic financial statements as 
listed in the table of contents of the financial statements. 
 
The objectives of our audit are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the financial statements as a 
whole are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and to issue an auditor's report 
that includes our opinion. Reasonable assurance is a high level of assurance but is not absolute assurance and 
therefore is not a guarantee that an audit conducted in accordance with auditing standards generally 
accepted in the United States of America (GAAS)	and, if applicable, in accordance with Government	Auditing	
Standards, and/or any state or regulatory audit requirements will always detect a material misstatement 
when it exists.  

Misstatements, including omissions, can arise from fraud or error and are considered material if there is a 
substantial likelihood that, individually or in the aggregate, they would influence the judgment made by a 
reasonable user based on the financial statements.  

Accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America, (U.S. GAAP,) as promulgated by the 
Governmental Accounting Standards Board (GASB) require that certain required supplementary information 
(RSI) such as management's discussion and analysis be presented to supplement the basic financial 
statements. Such information, although not a part of the basic financial statements, is required by the GASB, 
who considers it to be an essential part of financial reporting for placing the basic financial statements in an 
appropriate operational, economic, or historical context.  

As part of our engagement, we will apply certain limited procedures to the required supplementary 
information (RSI) in accordance with auditing standards generally accepted in the United States of America, 
(U.S. GAAS). These limited procedures will consist primarily of inquiries of management regarding their 
methods of measurement and presentation, and comparing the information for consistency with 
management's responses to our inquiries. We will not express an opinion or provide any form of assurance 
on the RSI. The following RSI is required by U.S. GAAP. This RSI will be subjected to certain limited 
procedures but will not be audited: 

1. Management's Discussion and Analysis 
2. Schedule of Proportionate Share of the Net Pension Liability 
3. Schedule of Pension Contributions 
4. Schedule of Changes in the Net OPEB Liability and Related Ratios 
5. Schedule of OPEB Contributions 

  

82



Page 2 of 8 
 

The following other information accompanying the financial statements will not be subjected to the auditing 
procedures applied in our audit of the financial statements, and our auditor’s report will not provide an 
opinion or any assurance on that other information.  

1. Introductory Section 
2. Budgetary Information Section 
3. Statistical Section 

We will also provide a report (that does not include an opinion) on internal control related to the financial 
statements and compliance with the provisions of laws, regulations, contracts, and grant agreements, 
noncompliance with which could have a material effect on the financial statements as required by 
Government	Auditing	 Standards. The report on internal control and on compliance and other matters will 
include a paragraph that states (1) that the purpose of the report is solely to describe the scope of testing of 
internal control and compliance, and the results of that testing, and not to provide an opinion on the 
effectiveness of the entity’s internal control on compliance, and (2) that the report is an integral part of an 
audit performed in accordance with Government	 Auditing	 Standards in considering the entity’s internal 
control and compliance. The paragraph will also state that the report is not suitable for any other purpose.  If 
during our audit we become aware that the District is subject to an audit requirement that is not 
encompassed in the terms of this engagement, we will communicate to management and those charged with 
governance that an audit in accordance with U.S. generally accepted auditing standards and the standards for 
financial audits contained in Government	Auditing	Standards may not satisfy the relevant legal, regulatory, or 
contractual requirements. 

Auditor	Responsibilities	

We will conduct our audit in accordance with GAAS and in accordance with Government	Auditing	Standards. 
As part of an audit in accordance with GAAS and in accordance with Government	Auditing	 Standards, we 
exercise professional judgment and maintain professional skepticism throughout the audit. We also: 

1. Identify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the financial statements, whether due to 
fraud or error, design and perform audit procedures responsive to those risks, and obtain audit 
evidence that is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion. The risk of not 
detecting a material misstatement resulting from fraud is higher than for one resulting from error, as 
fraud may involve collusion, forgery, intentional omissions, misrepresentations, or the override of 
internal control. 
 

2. Obtain an understanding of internal control relevant to the audit in order to design audit procedures 
that are appropriate in the circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the 
effectiveness of the District's internal control. However, we will communicate to you in writing 
concerning any significant deficiencies or material weaknesses in internal control relevant to the 
audit of the financial statements that we have identified during the audit. 
 

3. Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of significant 
accounting estimates made by management, as well as evaluate the overall presentation of the 
financial statements, including the disclosures, and whether the financial statements represent the 
underlying transactions and events in a manner that achieves fair presentation. 
 

4. Conclude, based on the audit evidence obtained, whether there are conditions or events, considered 
in the aggregate, that raise substantial doubt about the District's ability to continue as a going 
concern for a reasonable period of time. 

Because of the inherent limitations of an audit, together with the inherent limitations of internal control, an 
unavoidable risk that some material misstatements may not be detected exists, even though the audit is 
properly planned and performed in accordance with GAAS and in accordance with Government	 Auditing	
Standards. 

83



Page 3 of 8 
 

Our responsibility as auditors is limited to the period covered by our audit and does not extend to any other 
periods. 

Compliance	with	Laws	and	Regulations	

As previously discussed, as part of obtaining reasonable assurance about whether the basic financial 
statements are free of material misstatement, we will perform tests of the District's compliance with the 
provisions of applicable laws, regulations, contracts, and agreements. However, the objective of our audit will 
not be to provide an opinion on overall compliance and we will not express such an opinion. 

Management	Responsibilities	
	
Our audit will be conducted on the basis that management acknowledge and understand that they have 
responsibility: 
 

a) For the preparation and fair presentation of the basic financial statements in accordance with 
accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America; 

b) For the design, implementation, and maintenance of internal control relevant to the preparation and 
fair presentation of basic financial statements that are free from material misstatement, whether due 
to error, fraudulent financial reporting, misappropriation of assets, or violations of laws, 
governmental regulations, grant agreements, or contractual agreements; and 

c) To provide us with: 
i. Access to all information of which management is aware that is relevant to the preparation 

and fair presentation of the basic financial statements such as records, documentation, and 
other matters; 

ii. Additional information that we may request from management for the purpose of the audit; 
iii. Unrestricted access to persons within the District from whom we determine it necessary to 

obtain audit evidence. 
iv. A written acknowledgement of all the documents that management expects to issue that will 

be included in the annual report and the planned timing and method of issuance of that 
annual report; and  

v. A final version of the annual report (including all the documents that, together, comprise the 
annual report) in a timely manner prior to the date of the auditor's report. 

d) For including the auditor's report in any document containing basic financial statements that 
indicates that such basic financial statements have been audited by us; 

e) For identifying and ensuring that the District complies with the laws and regulations applicable to its 
activities; 

f) For adjusting the basic financial statements to correct material misstatements and confirming to us 
in the management representation letter that the effects of any uncorrected misstatements 
aggregated by us during the current engagement and pertaining to the current year period(s) under 
audit are immaterial, both individually and in the aggregate, to the basic financial statements as a 
whole; and 

g) For acceptance of nonattest services, including identifying the proper party to oversee nonattest 
work; 

h) For maintaining adequate records, selecting and applying accounting principles, and safeguarding 
assets; 

i) For informing us of any known or suspected fraud affecting the District involving management, 
employees with significant role in internal control and others where fraud could have a material 
effect on the financials; and 

j) For the accuracy and completeness of all information provided. 
 
With regard to the supplementary information referred to above, you acknowledge and understand your 
responsibility:  

a) for the preparation of the supplementary information in accordance with the applicable criteria;  
b) to provide us with the appropriate written representations regarding supplementary information;  

84



Page 4 of 8 
 

c) to include our report on the supplementary information in any document that contains the 
supplementary information and that indicates that we have reported on such supplementary 
information; and  

d) to present the supplementary information with the audited basic financial statements, or if the 
supplementary information will not be presented with the audited basic financial statements, to 
make the audited basic financial statements readily available to the intended users of the 
supplementary information no later than the date of issuance by you of the supplementary 
information and our report thereon. 

 
As part of our audit process, we will request from management, written confirmation concerning 
representations made to us in connection with the audit. 
 
Nonattest	Services	
	
With respect to any nonattest services we perform, 

At the end of the year, we agree to perform the following: 

a) Propose adjusting or correcting journal entries detected during the audit, if applicable, to be 
reviewed and approved by the District's management. 

b) Word process the financial statements using information provided by management. 

We will not assume management responsibilities on behalf of the District. However, we will provide advice 
and recommendations to assist management of the District in performing its responsibilities. 

The District's management is responsible for:  

a) making all management decisions and performing all management functions;  
b) assigning a competent individual to oversee the services;  
c) evaluating the adequacy of the services performed;  
d) evaluating and accepting responsibility for the results of the services performed; and  
e) establishing and maintaining internal controls, including monitoring ongoing activities. 

Our responsibilities and limitations of the nonattest services are as follows: 

a) We will perform the services in accordance with applicable professional standards 
b) The nonattest services are limited to the services previously outlined. Our firm, in its sole 

professional judgment, reserves the right to refuse to do any procedure or take any action that could 
be construed as making management decisions or assuming management responsibilities, including 
determining account coding and approving journal entries. Our firm will advise the District with 
regard to tax positions taken in the preparation of the tax return, but the District must make all 
decisions with regard to those matters. 

Reporting	
 
We will issue a written report upon completion of our audit of the District's basic financial statements. Our 
report will be addressed to the Board of Directors of the District. Circumstances may arise in which our 
report may differ from its expected form and content based on the results of our audit. Depending on the 
nature of these circumstances, it may be necessary for us to modify our opinions, add an emphasis-of-matter 
or other-matter paragraph(s) to our auditor's report, or if necessary, withdraw from the engagement. If our 
opinions on the basic financial statements are other than unmodified, we will discuss the reasons with you in 
advance. If, for any reason, we are unable to complete the audit or are unable to form or have not formed 
opinions, we may decline to express opinions or to issue a report as a result of this engagement. 
 
  

85



Page 5 of 8 
 

In accordance with the requirements of Government Auditing Standards, we will also issue a written report 
describing the scope of our testing over internal control over financial reporting and over compliance with 
laws, regulations, and provisions of grants and contracts, including the results of that testing. However, 
providing an opinion on internal control and compliance will not be an objective of the audit and, therefore, 
no such opinion will be expressed.  
 
Preparation	of	State	Controller	Report	
	
Our	Responsibilities	
	
The objective of our engagement is to prepare the annual Financial Transactions Report (FTR) in accordance 
with the California State Controller's Office Instructions based on information provided by you. We will 
conduct our engagement in accordance with Statements on Standards for Accounting and Review Services 
(SSARSs) promulgated by the Accounting and Review Services Committee of the AICPA and comply with the 
AICPA's Code of Professional Conduct, including the ethical principles of integrity, objectivity, professional 
competence, and due care. 
 
We are not required to, and will not, verify the accuracy or completeness of the information you will provide 
to us for the engagement or otherwise gather evidence for the purpose of expressing an opinion or a 
conclusion. Accordingly, we will not express an opinion or a conclusion or provide any assurance on the FTR. 
 
Our engagement cannot be relied upon to identify or disclose any FTR misstatements, including those caused 
by fraud or error, or to identify or disclose any wrongdoing within the District or noncompliance with laws 
and regulations. 
	
Management	Responsibilities	
	
The engagement to be performed is conducted on the basis that management acknowledges and understands 
that our role is to prepare the FTR in accordance with the State Controller's Office Instructions. Management 
has the following overall responsibilities that are fundamental to our undertaking the engagement to prepare 
your FTR in accordance with SSARSs: 
 

a) The selection of accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America as the 
financial reporting framework to be applied in the preparation of the financial statements 

b) The design, implementation, and maintenance of internal control relevant to the preparation and fair 
presentation of financial statements that are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud 
or error 

c) The prevention and detection of fraud 
d) To ensure that the District complies with the laws and regulations applicable to its activities 
e) The accuracy and completeness of the records, documents, explanations, and other information, 

including significant judgments, you provide to us for the engagement to prepare financial 
statements 

f) To provide us with: 
i. Documentation, and other related information that is relevant to the preparation and 

presentation of the financial statements, 
ii. Additional information that may be requested for the purpose of the preparation of the 

financial statements, and 
iii. Unrestricted access to persons of whom we determine necessary to communicate. 

 
As part of our engagement, we will issue a disclaimer that will state that the FTR were not subjected to an 
audit, review, or compilation engagement by us and, accordingly, we do not express an opinion, a conclusion, 
nor provide any assurance on them. 

	 	

86



Page 6 of 8 
 

Engagement	Fees	

Our fixed fees for the services previously outlined will be as follows: 

Financial Statements and Auditor Reports $21,000 

Preparation of the State Controller’s Report 500 

Total	 $21,500	

 

If significant changes occur in the District’s audit requirements with the implementation of new 
Governmental Accounting Standards Board (GASB) Standards, Government Auditing Standards or the Audit 
and Accounting Guide for State and Local Governments issued by the AICPA for attest and/or nonattest 
services, this may render additional services needed which may increase the above noted fixed fee. 

Our invoices for these fees will be rendered each month as work progresses and are payable on presentation. 
In accordance with our firm policies, work may be suspended if the District’s account becomes 60 days or 
more overdue and may not be resumed until the District’s account is paid in full. If we elect to terminate our 
services for nonpayment, our engagement will be deemed to have been completed upon written notification 
of termination, even if we have not completed our report. The District will be obligated to compensate us for 
all time expended and to reimburse us for all out-of-pocket costs through the date of termination. The above 
fee is based on anticipated cooperation from District personnel and the assumption that unexpected 
circumstances will not be encountered during the audit. If significant additional time is necessary, we will 
discuss it with management and arrive at a new fee estimate before we incur the additional costs. 

Additionally, our fees are dependent on the availability, quality, and completeness of the District's records 
and, where applicable, upon the District's personnel providing the level of assistance identified in the 
"prepared by client" request list distributed at the end of our planning work (e.g., District employees 
preparing confirmations and schedules we request, locating documents selected by us for testing, etc.). 

We will schedule the engagement based in part on deadlines, working conditions, and the availability of 
District key personnel. We will plan the engagement based on the assumption that District personnel will 
cooperate and provide assistance by performing tasks such as preparing requested schedules, retrieving 
supporting documents, and preparing confirmations. If, for whatever reason, District personnel are 
unavailable to provide the necessary assistance in a timely manner, it may substantially increase the work we 
have to do to complete the engagement within the established deadlines, resulting in an increase in fees over 
our original fee estimate. 

If circumstances occur related to the condition of District records, the availability of sufficient, appropriate 
audit evidence, or the existence of a significant risk of material misstatement of the financial statements 
caused by error, fraudulent financial reporting, or misappropriation of assets, which in our professional 
judgment prevent us from completing the audit or forming an opinion on the financial statements, we retain 
the right to take any course of action permitted by professional standards, including declining to express an 
opinion or issue a report, or withdrawing from the engagement. 

Should our assumptions with respect to these matters be incorrect, or should the condition of the records, 
degree of cooperation, or other matters beyond our reasonable control require additional commitments by us 
beyond those upon which our estimated fees are based, we may adjust our fees and planned completion 
dates. If significant additional time is necessary, we will discuss it with management and arrive at a new fee 
estimate as soon as reasonably practicable. 

Scheduling	
	
Scheduling of the Audit Final-Fieldwork Dates will be based on an agreeable timetable with the District. We 
ask that the District prepare a completed and finalized Trial Balance and General Ledger in Excel form as of 
the June 30, 2024 date with all Balance Sheet accounts properly reconciled in Excel or PDF form and uploaded 
into the Suralink Portal System by the date scheduled. Failure to complete all the above noted items by the 
date scheduled will result in a $1,000 extra fee charge and postponement of the audit to a later date. A 30-day 
notice before the initial scheduled Audit Final-Fieldwork date is required to change the date and avoid the 

87



Page 7 of 8 
 

extra $1,000 fee. However, if a December or January date is chosen for the re-scheduled Audit Final-
Fieldwork date, the $1,000 fee will still apply to cover Overtime costs incurred during those months and will 
only guarantee the audit will be completed by January 31, 2024. 

Other	Engagement	Matters	
	
During the course of the engagement, we may communicate with you or your personnel via fax or e-mail, and 
you should be aware that communication in those mediums contains a risk of misdirected or intercepted 
communications. 
 
Government Auditing Standards require that we document an assessment of the skills, knowledge, and 
experience of management, should we participate in any form of preparation of the basic financial statements 
and related schedules or disclosures as these actions are deemed a non-audit service. 
 
Paul	J	Kaymark,	CPA	is the engagement partner responsible for supervising the engagement and signing the 
report. During the course of the audit we may observe opportunities for economy in, or improved controls 
over, your operations. We will bring such matters to the attention of the appropriate level of management, 
either orally or in writing. You agree to inform us of facts that may affect the basic financial statements of 
which you may become aware during the period from the date of the auditor's report to the date the financial 
statements are issued. We agree to retain our audit documentation or work papers for a period of at least 
seven years from the date of our report. 
 
The audit documentation for this engagement is the property of Nigro & Nigro, PC and constitutes 
confidential information. However, we may be requested to make certain audit documentation available to 
regulatory agencies pursuant to authority given to it by law or regulation, or to peer reviewers. If requested, 
access to such audit documentation will be provided under the supervision of Nigro & Nigro, PC's personnel. 
Furthermore, upon request, we may provide copies of selected audit documentation to regulatory agencies. 
The regulatory agencies may intend, or decide, to distribute the copies of information contained therein to 
others, including other governmental agencies. We will notify the District of any such request. 
 
Conflict	Resolution	

Should any litigation or adverse action (such as audits by outside governmental agencies and/or threatened 
litigation, etc.), by third parties arise against the District or the board of directors subsequent to this 
engagement, which results in the subpoena of documents from Nigro & Nigro, PC and/or requires additional 
assistance from us to provide information, depositions or testimony, the District hereby agrees to 
compensate Nigro & Nigro, PC (at our standard hourly rates) for additional time charges and other costs 
(copies, travel, etc.), and to indemnify us for any attorney’s fees to represent Nigro & Nigro, PC. 

If any dispute arises among the parties hereto, the parties agree to first try in good faith to settle the dispute 
by mediation administered by the American Arbitration Association under its applicable rules for resolving 
professional accounting and related services disputes before resorting to litigation. The costs of any 
mediation proceeding shall be shared equally by all parties. 

The District and Nigro & Nigro, PC both agree that any dispute over fees charged by the auditor to the District 
will be submitted for resolution by arbitration in accordance with the applicable rules for resolving 
professional accounting and related services disputes of the American Arbitration Association, except that 
under all circumstances the arbitrator must follow the laws of California.  Such arbitration shall be binding 
and final. IN	 AGREEING	 TO	 ARBITRATION,	WE	 BOTH	 ACKNOWLEDGE	 THAT	 IN	 THE	 EVENT	 OF	 A	
DISPUTE	OVER	FEES	CHARGED	BY	THE	ACCOUNTANT,	EACH	OF	US	IS	GIVING	UP	THE	RIGHT	TO	HAVE	
THE	 DISPUTE	 DECIDED	 IN	 A	 COURT	 OF	 LAW	 BEFORE	 A	 JUDGE	 OR	 JURY	 AND	 INSTEAD	WE	 ARE	
ACCEPTING	THE	USE	OF	ARBITRATION	FOR	RESOLUTION. The prevailing party shall be entitled to an 
award of reasonable attorneys’ fees and costs incurred in connection with the arbitration of the dispute in an 
amount to be determined by the arbitrator. 

	 	

88



89



 

 

X:\BOARD\Agenda\Agenda 2024\Agenda Packet\05162024\SetBudgetHearing\ASR Budget Setting Date for Hearing.docx Page 1 of 1 
 

Agenda Summary Report                                            
         

 

To: Board of Directors 

From: Dale McDonald, Administrative Services Manager 
 (415) 526-1519   dmcdonald@lgvsd.org 
Meeting Date: May 16, 2024 

Re: Resolution No 2024-2328 Setting Time and Place for Public Hearing on the 
Budget for the Fiscal Year 2024-2025 

Item Type:   Consent  X  Action        Information  Other             

Standard Contract:    Yes     No  (See attached) Not Applicable      X        
 

 
STAFF RECOMMENDATION 
Staff recommends that the Board approve Resolution 2024-2328 setting the time and place of the 
Public Hearing for the Budget for the Fiscal Year 2024-2025 for June 20, 2024 at 4:00 PM at 101 
Lucas Valley Road, San Rafael, California. 

BACKGROUND 
One of the major steps in completing the annual budget is to allow the public an opportunity to 
review and make comments on the budget itself. While there is no government statute requiring 
this procedure, it is in the best interest of the community to be able to attend a public hearing so 
that the public can review and comment on how the District revenue is being calculated and how 
disbursements are proposed to be expended. The District has historically published a hearing 
notice in the local newspaper to reach the broadest audience possible. 
 
In that regard, the Board of Directors is requested to approve a date for a public hearing to review 
the 2024-2025 annual budget.  
 
If approved, staff will publish once a week for two consecutive weeks a notice regarding the public 
hearing in the local newspaper. 
 

PREVIOUS BOARD ACTION 
None 
 
ENVIRONMENTAL REVIEW 
N/A 
  
FISCAL IMPACT 
None. 
 

Item Number_______3H_______ 

GM Review   ________CP______ 

90

mailto:dmcdonald@lgvsd.org


Resolution No. 2024-2328  
  

RESOLUTION No 2024-2328 
 

A RESOLUTION FIXING TIME AND PLACE FOR PUBLIC HEARING 
ON THE DISTRICT BUDGET FOR THE FISCAL YEAR 2024-2025 

 
LAS GALLINAS VALLEY SANITARY DISTRICT 

 

WHEREAS, this District is in the process of developing a budget for fiscal year 

2024-2025; and 

 

WHEREAS, it is in the best interest of the community to allow the public an 

opportunity be a part of the budget process, to see how the budget is calculated and 

how proposed disbursements are being expended, and to allow the public to comment 

on the budget. 
 

NOW, THEREFORE, the Board of Directors of the Las Gallinas Valley Sanitary 

District herein shall at a regular meeting place of said Board located at 101 Lucas 

Valley Road, San Rafael, California, is hereby set on Thursday, June 20, 2024 at 4:00 

p.m. as the time and place for a public hearing on the 2024-2025 Budget Report filed 

with the Secretary of this District, and the Board Secretary shall publish notice of said 

hearing and the filing of said report, once a week for two successive weeks prior to the 

date set for said hearing, in the Marin Independent Journal, a newspaper of general 

circulation, printed and published in Marin County, there being no other newspaper of 

general circulation printed and published in the District; post it at the District’s offices at 

101 Lucas Valley Road, Suite 300, San Rafael, CA; and post it at its website at  

www.lgvsd.org. 

 

*  *  *  *  *  *  *  *  *  *  *  * 
 

I hereby certify that the forgoing is a full, true, and correct copy of a resolution duly and 
regularly passed and adopted by the Sanitary Board of the Las Gallinas Valley Sanitary 
District, Marin County, California, at a meeting thereof held on the 16th day of May 2024, 
by the following vote of the members thereof: 
 

AYES, and in favor thereof, Members: 
NOES, Members: 
ABSTAIN, Members: 
ABSENT, Members: 
      ________________________________ 

       Teresa L. Lerch, Board Secretary 
       
Approved: 
           (seal) 
_____________________________________ 
Craig K. Murray, President of Board of Directors 

91

http://www.lgvsd.org/


 

 
 

 

5/16/2024 
 

 General Manager Report 

□ Separate Item to be distributed at Board Meeting 

□ Separate Item to be distributed prior to Board Meeting 

 Verbal Report  

□ Presentation 

 

AGENDA ITEM 4.1 

92



93



94



95



96



97



98



99



 

 
 

 

5/16/2024 
 

SOLAR PROJECT UPDATE 

□ Separate Item to be distributed at Board Meeting 

□ Separate Item to be distributed prior to Board Meeting 

 Verbal Report  

□ Presentation 

 

AGENDA ITEM  4.3 

100



101



102



103



104



 

 

X:\BOARD\Agenda\Agenda 2024\Agenda Packet\05162024\QtrFinancialReport\ASR 3rd QTR Treasurer's Report March 2024.docx Page 1 of 2 

Agenda Summary Report                                            
         

 

To: Board of Directors 

From: Dale McDonald, Administrative Services Manager  
(415) 526-1519   dmcdonald@lgvsd.org 

Meeting Date: May 16, 2024 

Re: Quarterly Treasurer’s & Financial Reports as of March 31, 2024 

Item Type:   Consent   Action  Information  X Other             . 

Standard Contract:    Yes     No  (See attached) Not Applicable      X       . 

 

 
STAFF RECOMMENDATION 
Receive the Treasurer’s report for the quarter ending March 31, 2024. 
 
BACKGROUND 
Board Policy F-20-10 (Financial Reporting) and Board Policy F-70-120 (Investment Reporting) 
require that quarterly reports be submitted to the Board. It is prudent and beneficial to present 
these reports to the Board at the same time. 
 
TREASURER’S REPORT 
Pursuant to the State of California Government Code Section 56300, the District’s investment 
policy adopted on July 21, 2022, and industry best practices, staff has prepared a quarterly 
financial report as of March 31, 2024. The attached report includes all bank and investment 
accounts managed by the District. 
 

As specified in California Government Code Section 53646(e), if all funds are placed in the State of 
California Local Agency Investment Fund (LAIF), in accounts insured or guaranteed pursuant to 
Section 14858 of the Financial Code, FDIC-insured accounts and/or in a county investment pool, 
the reporting elements may be replaced by copies of the latest statements from such institutions. 
 
The District diversified from its primary investment account, LAIF, in January 2024. Two additional 
pooled investment accounts, California Cooperative Liquid Assets Security System (California 
CLASS) and California Asset Management Program (CAMP), were established in December 2023. 
Below are the investment summaries for the quarter ending March 31, 2024: 
 

• LAIF interest rate was 4.30%, up from 4.00% in December. Quarterly interest earned from 
LAIF was $49,861.06. The latest quarterly LAIF Remittance Advice statement and 
PMIA/LAIF Performance Report from the California State Controller’s Office are attached.  

 

• California CLASS average monthly yield as of March 31 was 5.421%. Interest dividend 
reinvestment is reported monthly. Total interest earned in the quarter was $124,451. 
Attached are the account statement pages from the monthly California CLASS statements 
this quarter. 

 

Item Number_____4.5_________ 

GM Review   _____CP_________ 

105

mailto:dmcdonald@lgvsd.org


 

 

X:\BOARD\Agenda\Agenda 2024\Agenda Packet\05162024\QtrFinancialReport\ASR 3rd QTR Treasurer's Report March 2024.docx Page 2 of 2 

 

• CAMP monthly distribution yield was 5.48% as of March 31. Total dividend and income 
earned in the quarter was $122,264. Attached are the account statement pages from the 
monthly CAMP statements this quarter. Restricted reserves are held in CAMP. 

 
The District maintains two debt reserve funds, equal to one year’s debt service for the State 
Revolving Fund and Bank of Marin loans. The quarterly account statements for the two Bank of 
Marin Certificates of Deposit accounts are included as part of this Treasurer’s Report. 
 
Total investments of $22,907,002 are held in the District’s investment accounts and two restricted 
debt service accounts, which reflect a decrease of $995,776 during the previous twelve-month 
period. 
 

The District’s investments comply with its investment policy and the District has sufficient funds 
available to meet its obligations for the next six months. 
   
QUARTERLY FINANCIAL REPORT 
District staff is required to provide a quarterly summary report to the Board. The actual revenues 
and expenditures to budgeted amounts, including relevant information on debt proceeds and debt 
service payments, are included in the preliminary FY 2024-25 budget report to be presented 
following this agenda item. 
 
Cash Balance  
The District has $27,627,161 of cash and investments on hand as of March 31, 2024; a decrease 
of $127,594 from March 31, 2023. The operating account balance fluctuates based on operating 
needs. It is not uncommon for the balance to change over the prior quarter or year. Of the cash on 
hand, the District has designated portions of it for the following uses:  
 

• Encumbrances total $12,590,461 for capital projects and services. Some encumbered 
funds for capital projects or services carry into the next fiscal year. The Summary Open 
Purchase Order Report at the end of this report includes all Board approved expenditures 
and combines department encumbrances by General Ledger account. 

• Reserves of $10,958,366 pursuant to the District’s policies. 

• Connection fees of $922,878 which are available only to fund capacity related projects. 

• Debt service restricted reserve funds of $912,465 as required by loan covenants. 

• Accumulation of $411,350 in cash for the Private Sewer Lateral Assistance program. 

• Special assessment funds for operation and maintenance of the pump stations at Marin 
Lagoon and Captains Cove of $23,296 and $12,626, respectively. 

PREVIOUS BOARD ACTION 
N/A 
 

ENVIRONMENTAL REVIEW 
N/A 
 

FISCAL IMPACT 
See above.  

106



I. Account Summary: Bank and Investment Accounts
2023 2024

Summary of Bank and Investment Accounts

OPERATIONS:

Bank of Marin

Operating Accounts 1,940,635            2,549,398            608,764            
Liquid Savings 226,068               232,605 6,536
Private Sewer Lateral Rehab 394,015               411,350 17,336              
Surcharge-Marin Lagoon 9,961 23,296 13,336              
Surcharge-Captains Cove 2,472 12,626 10,155              
Connection Fee 710,582               922,878 212,296            
Capital Project Recycled Water Reserve Fund 23 24 1

Petty cash 335 89 (246) 
Investment Accounts - 

Debt Service Reserve-Recycled Water 604,897               607,892 2,996
Debt Service Reserve-SRF Loan 303,072               304,573 1,501
Local Agency Investment Fund 22,994,810          1,789,456 (21,205,354)      
California Cooperative Liquid Assets Security System - 9,124,451            9,124,451         
California Asset Management Program - 11,080,630          11,080,630 

Cash and Investments 27,186,869$        27,059,270$        (127,600)$         

IBANK ISRF AGREEMENT: 567,760               567,760$             - 

RESTRICTED 2017 BOND 

US Bank Bond & Cost of Issuance Funds 126$  131$  5$  
TOTAL CASH AND INVESTMENTS 27,754,755$        27,627,161$        (127,594)$         

II. Account Activity for Bank of Marin Accounts
Bank of Marin operating account activity is for paying regular operating expenses of the District.  Funds are 
transferred from the Liquid Savings to the Operating account as needed.

Statement of Compliance:
The investments accounts are invested in compliance with the District's investment policy, adopted at the 
July 21, 2022  Board meeting and California Government Code Section 53600. In addition, the District does 
have the financial ability to meet  its cash flow requirements for the next six months.

Prepared by: Approved by: 
Dale McDonald, Administrative Services Manager Curtis Paxton, General Manager

Las Gallinas Valley Sanitary District
Treasurer's Report - Operating and Investment Accounts

March 31, 2024

March Change from 
Previous YearAccounts Summary

10%

5%

83%

2%

2024

8%
4%

86%

2%

2023

Operating

Restricted

Investment

Other / IBank

Q:\ACCOUNTING\QUARTERLY FINANCIALS\2023-24\3rd Qtr Mar\3rd QTR Treasurers Report March 2024 4/30/2024 8:55 PM107



4/15/24, 9:50 AM Untitled Page

https://laif.sco.ca.gov/Result.aspx 1/1

MALIA M. COHEN

California State Controller

LOCAL AGENCY INVESTMENT FUND
REMITTANCE ADVICE

Agency Name LAS GALINAS VLY SANITARY DIST 

Account Number xx-xx-005

As of 04/15/2024, your Local Agency Investment Fund account has been directly credited
with the interest earned on your deposits for the quarter ending 03/31/2024.

Earnings Ratio .00011755619077389

Interest Rate 4.30%

Dollar Day Total $ 424,146,622.37

Quarter End Principal Balance $ 1,789,455.99

Quarterly Interest Earned $ 49,861.06

108



March 4.232
February 4.122

January 4.012
December 3.929
November 3.843

October 3.670

LAIF Apportionment Rate(2): 4.30

LAIF Earnings Ratio(2): 0.00011755619077389

LAIF Administrative Cost(1)*: 0.27

PMIA Average Life(1): 226

LAIF Fair Value Factor(1): 0.994191267

PMIA Daily(1): 4.22

PMIA Quarter to Date(1): 4.12

Treasuries
58.24%

Agencies
22.16%

Certificates of 
Deposit/Bank Notes

9.23%

Time 
Deposits

3.25%

Commercial
Paper
6.47%

Corporate 
Bonds
0.43%

Loans
0.22%

Notes: The apportionment rate includes interest earned on the CalPERS Supplemental Pension Payment pursuant to Government Code 20825 
(c)(1) and interest earned on the Wildfire Fund loan pursuant to Public Utility Code 3288 (a). 

*The percentage of administrative cost equals the total administrative cost divided by the quarterly interest earnings. The law provides that
administrative costs are not to exceed 5% of quarterly EARNINGS of the fund. However, if the 13-week Daily Treasury Bill Rate on the last day of 
the fiscal year is below 1%, then administrative costs shall not exceed 8% of quarterly EARNINGS of the fund for the subsequent fiscal year. 

Source:
(1) State of California, Office of the Treasurer
(2) State of Calfiornia, Office of the Controller

PMIA Average Monthly 
Effective Yields(1)

PMIA/LAIF Performance Report
as of 4/17/24

Daily rates are now available here.  View PMIA Daily Rates

Quarterly Performance
Quarter Ended 03/31/24

Chart does not include $2,005,000.00 in mortgages, which equates to 0.001%. Percentages may not total 100% due to rounding.

Pooled Money Investment Account
Monthly Portfolio Composition (1)

3/31/24
$156.5 billion

109

https://www.treasurer.ca.gov/pmia-laif/historical/daily.pdf


LGVSD Prime

Tel: (877) 930-5213 www.californiaclass.com

January 31, 2024

Page 2 of 3

Account Number:8-0001

Account Statement

Account Summary Average Monthly Yield:  5.4981%

Beginning
Balance Contributions Withdrawals

Income
Earned

Income
Earned

YTD
Average Daily

Balance
Month End

Balance
California CLASS 0.00 13,000,000.00 0.00 27,192.96 27,192.96 5,871,844.93 13,027,192.96

Transaction Activity

Transaction Date Transaction Description Contributions Withdrawals Balance Transaction Number

01/18/2024 Contribution 13,000,000.00 3046

01/31/2024 Income Dividend Reinvestment 27,192.96

01/31/2024 Ending Balance 13,027,192.96

110



LGVSD Prime

Tel: (877) 930-5213 www.californiaclass.com

February 29, 2024

Page 2 of 3

Account Number:8-0001

Account Statement

Account Summary Average Monthly Yield:  5.4395%

Beginning
Balance Contributions Withdrawals

Income
Earned

Income
Earned

YTD
Average Daily

Balance
Month End

Balance
California CLASS 13,027,192.96 0.00 4,000,000.00 55,552.90 82,745.86 12,891,177.54 9,082,745.86

Transaction Activity

Transaction Date Transaction Description Contributions Withdrawals Balance Transaction Number

02/01/2024 Beginning Balance 13,027,192.96

02/29/2024 Withdrawal 4,000,000.00 3463

02/29/2024 Income Dividend Reinvestment 55,552.90

02/29/2024 Ending Balance 9,082,745.86

111



LGVSD Prime

Tel: (877) 930-5213 www.californiaclass.com

March 31, 2024

Page 2 of 3

Account Number:8-0001

Account Statement

Account Summary Average Monthly Yield:  5.4210%

Beginning
Balance Contributions Withdrawals

Income
Earned

Income
Earned

YTD
Average Daily

Balance
Month End

Balance
California CLASS 9,082,745.86 0.00 0.00 41,705.00 124,450.86 9,088,127.15 9,124,450.86

Transaction Activity

Transaction Date Transaction Description Contributions Withdrawals Balance Transaction Number

03/01/2024 Beginning Balance 9,082,745.86

03/31/2024 Income Dividend Reinvestment 41,705.00

03/31/2024 Ending Balance 9,124,450.86

112



For the Month Ending January 31, 2024Account Statement 

Las Gallinas Valley Sanitary District - LGVSD CAMP - xxxx-01
Total Settlement Dollar AmountShare or Trade

Shares OwnedDate Transaction Description of TransactionUnit PriceDate

CAMP Pool

 0.00 Opening Balance

01/18/24 01/18/24 Purchase - Incoming Wires  1.00  10,958,366.00  10,958,366.00 

01/31/24 02/01/24 Accrual Income Div Reinvestment - Distributions  1.00  23,191.51  10,981,557.51 

 10,981,557.51 

 10,981,557.51 

 10,981,557.51 

 4,949,687.60 

 23,191.51 

 0.00 

 0.00 

 10,981,557.51 

 0.00 

 23,191.51 

 10,981,557.51 

 0.00 

 0.00 

 10,981,557.51 

 0.00 

Monthly Distribution Yield

Average Monthly Balance

Closing Balance

Fiscal YTDMonth of

Cash Dividends and Income

Closing Balance

Check Disbursements

Redemptions (Excl. Checks)

Purchases

Opening Balance

Closing Balance

January July-January

 5.54%

Account xxxx-01 Page 2

113



For the Month Ending February 29, 2024Account Statement 

Las Gallinas Valley Sanitary District - LGVSD CAMP - xxxx-01
Total Settlement Dollar AmountShare or Trade

Shares OwnedDate Transaction Description of TransactionUnit PriceDate

CAMP Pool

 10,981,557.51 Opening Balance

02/29/24 03/01/24 Accrual Income Div Reinvestment - Distributions  1.00  47,881.45  11,029,438.96 

 11,029,438.96 

 11,029,438.96 

 11,029,438.96 

 10,983,208.59 

 71,072.96 

 0.00 

 0.00 

 11,029,438.96 

 0.00 

 47,881.45 

 11,029,438.96 

 0.00 

 0.00 

 47,881.45 

 10,981,557.51 

Monthly Distribution Yield

Average Monthly Balance

Closing Balance

Fiscal YTDMonth of

Cash Dividends and Income

Closing Balance

Check Disbursements

Redemptions (Excl. Checks)

Purchases

Opening Balance

Closing Balance

February July-February

 5.50%

Account xxxx-01 Page 2

114



For the Month Ending March 31, 2024Account Statement 

Las Gallinas Valley Sanitary District - LGVSD CAMP - xxxx-01

Total Settlement Dollar AmountShare or Trade

Shares OwnedDate Transaction Description of TransactionUnit PriceDate

CAMP Pool

 11,029,438.96 Opening Balance

03/28/24 04/01/24 Accrual Income Div Reinvestment - Distributions  1.00  51,191.15  11,080,630.11 

 11,080,630.11 

 11,080,630.11 

 11,080,630.11 

 11,036,044.27 

 122,264.11 

 0.00 

 0.00 

 11,080,630.11 

 0.00 

 51,191.15 

 11,080,630.11 

 0.00 

 0.00 

 51,191.15 

 11,029,438.96 

Monthly Distribution Yield

Average Monthly Balance

Closing Balance

Fiscal YTDMonth of

Cash Dividends and Income

Closing Balance

Check Disbursements

Redemptions (Excl. Checks)

Purchases

Opening Balance

Closing Balance

March July-March

 5.48%

Account xxxx-01 Page 2

115



Account Number: xxxx-xx5679 
Statement Period: 12/31/23 - 03/31/24 
Page: 1 of 1

PO Box 2039
Novato, CA 94948-2039

Customer Service Information
Branch: 415-472-2265
Touch Tone Banking: 800-654-5111

Lost or Stolen Card:
24 hours 7 days per week 866-626-6004

Written Inquiries:
496 LAS GALLINAS AVE #4
SAN RAFAEL CA 94903

Visit us Online: www.bankofmarin.com

LAS GALLINAS VALLEY SANITARY DISTRICT
"BANK OF MARIN DEBT RESERVE"
101 LUCAS VALLEY RD SUITE 300
SAN RAFAEL CA 94903-1795

Account Summary for PUBLIC FUNDS JMBO CDxxxx-xx5679

Total Current Balance $607,892.31
Total Interest Year To Date $756.44

Transaction Detail

Date Description Deposits Withdrawals Balance
12/31 Beginning Balance $607,135.87
01/31 Interest 756.44 607,892.31
03/31 Ending Balance $607,892.31

Deposit Number 0000-000001
Principal $571,431.58
Current Balance $607,892.31
Total Interest Year To Date $756.44
Current Rate 0.494%

Original Deposit Amount $569,178.89
Original Deposit Date 08/01/12
Last Maturity Date 08/01/20
Current Term 60 Months, renewable
Next Maturity Date 08/01/25

00008073 00026786 0001 0001 BOMB1110033024060259 01

00008073 BOMB1110033024060259 01     0000

101010101010101010101010
101011011100100000100011
110010110111110100111100
101000110101010110101101
101111000011010000100000
101111010000110011001111
101100011001100000000100
101100000001000101100111
100011100100001011100010
110010001100101100010101
110010100000101011101110
100000010010111011100101
101010010000001001001110
110001000000101010010101
100100010100000101001000
100100010011101101010101
110001100100110001001110
110010101100011100100001
100011011101111101011000
101000011111101111011101
110000000111101100100110
100000010101010000010101
100001110111000010101010
111111111111111111111111

116



Account Number: xxxx-xx6073 
Statement Period: 12/31/23 - 03/31/24 
Page: 1 of 1

PO Box 2039
Novato, CA 94948-2039

Customer Service Information
Branch: 415-472-2265
Touch Tone Banking: 800-654-5111

Lost or Stolen Card:
24 hours 7 days per week 866-626-6004

Written Inquiries:
496 LAS GALLINAS AVE #4
SAN RAFAEL CA 94903

Visit us Online: www.bankofmarin.com

LAS GALLINAS VALLEY SANITARY DISTRICT
101 LUCAS VALLEY RD SUITE 300
SAN RAFAEL CA 94903-1795

Account Summary for PUBLIC FUNDS JMBO CDxxxx-xx6073

Total Current Balance $304,572.71
Total Interest Year To Date $379.00

Transaction Detail

Date Description Deposits Withdrawals Balance
12/31 Beginning Balance $304,193.71
01/29 Interest 379.00 304,572.71
03/31 Ending Balance $304,572.71

Deposit Number 0000-000001
Principal $286,304.76
Current Balance $304,572.71
Total Interest Year To Date $379.00
Current Rate 0.494%

Original Deposit Amount $286,304.76
Original Deposit Date 07/30/13
Last Maturity Date 07/30/20
Current Term 60 Months, renewable
Next Maturity Date 07/30/25

00008076 00026792 0001 0001 BOMB1110033024060259 01

00008076 BOMB1110033024060259 01     0000

101010101010101010101010
101011011100100000100011
110010110111110100111100
101000110101010110101101
101111000011010000100000
101111010000110011001111
101100011011000000000100
101100000001000101100111
100011100100001011110110
110010001100101100110001
110010100000111011000010
100000010010010110011101
101010011100110000111110
110001011011110010010101
100100011100110011001000
100100011000000010101101
110001111011101100110110
110010001000001011000001
100000101000001001111100
101010001111111110111011
110111010100101010110000
100100000101010000001101
100001110100100010110010
111111111111111111111111

117



Las Gallinas Valley Sanitary District Purchase Order Report Page:     1
Summary Report - Open Purchase Orders May 06, 2024  09:35AM

Report Dates: All - 03/24

Open PO GL Encumbrance Summary

GL Account GL Title Debit

10-400-5331 Personnel & HR Services 81,813.45
10-400-5342 Other Consultants 34,341.45
10-400-5347 Public Education 2,738.75
10-400-5351 Legal 1,086.50
10-400-5355 Financial Services 18,550.00
10-400-5361 Consulting IT Services 22,183.62
10-420-5342 Other Consultants 136,932.75
10-420-5343 DNU General Small Projects 47,304.97
10-420-5415 General Small Projects 7,848.62
10-460-5231 Diesel Collections 4,017.80
10-460-5233 Vehicle Gas Collections 5,564.14
10-460-5241 Safety Contractor Services 21,707.00
10-460-5334 Uniform Maintenance 87,500.00
10-460-5361 Consulting IT Services 22,600.00
10-460-5441 Lateral Rehab Assistance Prog 10,000.00
10-480-5243 Misc Safety Exp - Lgvsd only 3,760.79
10-480-5361 Consulting IT Services 5,678.00
10-480-5469 Employee Education & Training 4,630.00
10-500-5312 Grounds Maintenance 6,741.07
10-500-5317 Equipment Repair 4,250.00
10-500-5319 Capital Repair / Replacement 40,439.06
10-500-5342 Other Consultants 1,745.93
10-500-5345 SCADA Engineering Support 1,208.67
10-560-5161 Solar Phase II 31,953.75
10-560-5329 Lab Contract Services 41,810.79
10-560-5455 Permits and Fees 4,800.00
10-580-5321 General - Reclamation expenses 11,013.00
10-580-5325 Sludge Inject & Land Applicati 19,847.49
10-580-5339 Other Outside Services 9,415.00
10-580-5342 Other Consultants 18,749.00
10-600-5231 Diesel Plant 4,017.79
10-600-5233 Vehicle Gas Plant 5,564.14
10-600-5281 Hypochlorite 9,327.31
10-600-5282 Bisulfite 58,121.46
10-600-5283 Miscellaneous Chemicals 11,857.43
10-600-5313 Power Generation Maint.&  Rep 311.79
10-600-5317 Equipment Repair 3,500.00
10-600-5319 Capital Repair / Replacement 601.62
10-600-5334 Uniform Maintenance 87,500.00
10-600-5341 Environmental 241,690.75
10-600-5342 Other Consultants 3,564.61
10-600-5345 SCADA Engineering Support 1,209.67
10-600-5361 Consulting IT Services 7,648.91
10-710-5601 Integrated Wastewater MP 546,070.58
10-711-5601 Caselle Accounting Software 21,356.00
10-715-5601 Pan & Tilt Camera 28,158.00
10-745-5601 On-Call Engineering 175,449.30
10-747-5601 Digester Room MCC#2 Upgrade 976,584.06
10-752-5601 Annual Sewer Rehab 378,266.42
10-754-5601 Trunk Sewer Capacity Analysis 745,895.25
10-756-5601 Collection System Vehicles 573,742.60
10-757-5601 Equipment 17,952.89
10-759-5601 Hydraulic Modeling 63,044.55

118



Las Gallinas Valley Sanitary District Purchase Order Report Page:     2
Summary Report - Open Purchase Orders May 06, 2024  09:35AM

Report Dates: All - 03/24

Open PO GL Encumbrance Summary

GL Account GL Title Debit

10-761-5601 Primary Clarifier #1 Repair 1,367,300.00
10-762-5601 On-Call Construction 200,000.00
10-805-5601 Standby Generators Minor PS 432,330.19
10-807-5601 Fencing Improvements 5,910.00
10-809-5601 Electrical System VFD 39,887.00
10-811-5601 St. Vincent Pump Station Impro 7,150.00
10-812-5601 Creek & Watershed  Programs 42,388.28
10-813-5601 Biosolids System Program 921,440.97
10-816-5601 Misc Effluent Disposal Imprvs 3,575.25
10-818-5601 Digester Improvement 45,284.55
10-902-5601 Secondary Plant Upgrade 3,519,587.22
10-903-5601 Emergency Bypass Pumping Analy 10,076.09
10-904-5601 Asset CMMS Onboarding 165,350.00
10-905-5601 Flow Equalization 499,487.25
10-907-5601 Grit Chambers Coating & Auger 8,623.88
10-917-5601 Plant Lighting Improvement Ele 861.00
10-918-5601 Standard Specs & Drawings Upda 57,790.00
10-919-5601 IT Pipes Software Upgrade-Vide 7,500.00
60-620-5284 Laboratory Supplies 3,374.57
60-620-5341 Environmental 247,715.11
60-620-5345 SCADA Engineering Support 1,209.65
60-620-5361 Consulting IT Services 7,648.90
60-851-5601 Recycled Water Facility 324,305.05

Grand Totals: 12,590,461.69

119



 

 
 

 

5/16/2024 
 

REVIEW PRELIMINARY BUDGET FOR FISCAL YEAR 2024-2025 

□ Separate Item to be distributed at Board Meeting 

 Separate Item to be distributed prior to Board Meeting 

□ Verbal Report  

□ Presentation 

 

AGENDA ITEM  4.6 

120



 

 
 

 

5/16/2024 
 

BOARD MEMBER REPORTS 
CLARK 

NBWA Board Committee, CASA Workforce Committee, 
Operations Control Centers Ad Hoc Committee, Fleet 
Management Ad Hoc Committee, FutureSense Ad Hoc 
Committee, Other Reports 
 

MURRAY 
Marin LAFCO, Flood Zone 6,  Biosolids Ad Hoc Committee, 
CASA Energy Committee, Development Ad Hoc Committee, 
SF Trail Ad Hoc Committee, Other Reports  
 

NITZBERG 
 

  

ROBARDS 
Gallinas Watershed Council/Miller Creek, Engineering Ad 
Hoc Committee re: STPURWE,  McInnis Marsh Ad Hoc 
Committee, Development Ad Hoc Committee, FutureSense 
Ad Hoc Committee, Other Reports  

 
YEZMAN 

Flood Zone 7, CSRMA,  Ad Hoc Engineering Sub-
Committee re: STPURWE, Marin Special Districts 
Association, Biosolids Ad Hoc Committee, Other Reports 
 

AGENDA ITEM 5 

121



122



123



124



125



126



127



128



129



130



131



132



133



134



135



136



137



138



139



140



141



142



143



144



145



146



147



148



149



                                                                                  AGENDA ITEM 6A 
                                                                                 DATE: May 16, 2024             

REVISED 06012021 

 
 

BOARD MEMBER 

 MEETING ATTENDANCE REQUEST 
 

 

Date:___________Name:__________________________________________________ 

 

I would like to attend the __________________________________________Meeting 

of _____________________________________________________________________ 

To be held on the ______ day of ___________ from ________ a.m. / p.m. to 

_______day of ___________ from  _________ a.m. / p.m. 

Location of meeting:____________________________________________________ 

Actual meeting date(s):____________________________________________________ 

Meeting Type: (In person/Webinar/Conference)_______________________________ 

Purpose of Meeting:______________________________________________________  

________________________________________________________________________ 

Meeting relevance to District:__________________________________________  

                  YES     NO 

Request assistance from Board Secretary to register for Conference:          

 

Frequency of Meeting: ____________________________________________________ 

 

Estimated Costs of Travel (if applicable):____________________________________ 

 

_______________________________________________________________________ 

 

Date submitted to Board Secretary:________________________________________ 

 

Board approval obtained on Date:_________________________________________ 

 

Please submit this form to the Board Secretary no later than 1 week  prior to the 

Board Meeting.  

 

  

150



 

 
 

X:\BOARD\Agenda\Agenda 2024\Agenda Packet\05162024\Board Agenda Item Requests.docx 

5/16/2024 
 

BOARD AGENDA ITEM REQUESTS 
 

Agenda Item 6B 

□ Separate Item to be distributed at Board Meeting 

□ Separate Item to be distributed prior to Board Meeting 

 Verbal Report 

□ Presentation 

 

151



152



153



154



155



156



157



158



159



160



161



162



163



164



165



166



167



168



169



170



171



172



173



174



175



176



177



178



179



180



181



182



183



184



185



186


	Agenda 05162024
	1 Public Comment
	2 Closed Session
	3A Minutes 05022024 and 05062024
	3B Check Warrant List
	3C Board April Compensation
	3D Budget Authorization for Actions to Potentially Eliminate Blending
	3E Award of Contract to GHD for John Duckett PS Electrical Upgrades and Terra Linda TS Creek Crossing Improvements
	LGVSD - GHD Proposal for JDPS_20240408.pdf
	1. Background & Project Understanding
	2. Scope of Work
	Deliverables:
	Assumptions:
	Aquatic Resources Delineation Report
	Botanical Surveys and Sensitive Natural Community Technical Memorandum
	Biological Resource Report (Wildlife)
	Cultural Resources Investigation
	Deliverables:
	Assumptions:
	Kickoff Meeting and Project Description
	Administrative Draft Initial Study/Proposed Mitigated Negative Declaration (MND)
	Screen Check Draft Initial Study/Proposed MND
	Notice of Intent to Adopt, Notice of Completion, Mailing List
	Public Draft Initial Study/Proposed MND
	Administrative Draft Final Initial Study/MND
	Final Initial Study/MND and Public Meetings
	File Notice of Determination
	Deliverables:
	Assumptions:
	Deliverables:
	Assumptions:
	Agency Pre-Permitting Coordination
	California Department of Fish and Wildlife LSAA
	U.S. Army Corps of Engineers NWP 58
	San Francisco Bay Regional Water Quality Control Board Section 401 Water Quality Certification
	Biological Assessments - NMFS and USFWS (excluded)
	Revegetation and Monitoring Plan
	Deliverables:
	Assumptions:
	Deliverables:
	Assumptions:
	Deliverables:
	Assumptions:
	Deliverables:
	Assumptions:
	Deliverables:
	Assumptions:
	Deliverables:

	General Assumptions
	Scope Exclusions
	3. Fee
	4. Schedule


	3F Award of Contract for Treatment Plant Standby Generator Upgrade
	3G Audit Engagement Letter
	Audit Engagement Letter 5-1-24.pdf
	LGVSD EL 2024
	LGVSD EL Signed


	3H Resolution 2024-2328 Setting Date for Public Hearing for Budget
	4.1 General Manager Report
	4.2 Engineering Department Report Feb - April
	4.3 Solar Project Update
	4.4 Administration Department Report Jan - March
	4.5 Third Quarter Treasurer's Report March 2024
	Third QTR Treasurer's Report and statements.pdf
	Third QTR Treasurer's Report and statements
	0_3rd QTR Treasurers Report March 2024
	1_LAIF Quarterly Interest 3-31-24
	2_PMIA-LAIF_perform 4-17-24
	3_CLASS 20240131_STMT_CA-01-0138_399
	4_CLASS 20240229_STMT_CA-01-0138_399
	5_CLASS 20240331_STMT_CA-01-0138_399
	6_Statement January 31 2024
	7_Statement February 29 2024
	8_Statement March 31 2024
	9_CD 715679
	10_CD 716073

	Summary Open PO report as of 3-31-24


	4.6 Review Preliminary Budget
	5 Board Member Reports
	5.2 Murray Other Reports
	6A Board Member Meeting Attendance Request
	6B Board Agenda Item Requests
	7 Various Industry Articles



